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COMPANY PROFILE

The Organic Meat Company Limited (TOMCL) is one of
the largest processors and leading exporters of quality red
meat, as well as related meat by-products from Pakistan.
The Company has developed an expertise to satisfactorily
meet its customers’ requirements by processing beef,
mutton and camel meat in various forms, that include fresh-
chilled, frozen, vacuum-packed, M.A.P. vaccum-packed and
heat-treated meat products. As a result, TOMCL has one of
the largest offerings of meat and offal products, as well as
share of export markets from Pakistan. To serve it's purposes,
the Company owns and operates state-of-the-art production
facilities in Gadap and Korangi towns of Karachi.

Over the years, the Company has expanded into new export
markets by innovatively focusing in development of new
products which can differentiate the Company from its
competitors, as well as earn healthy margins to drive its
growth in terms of revenues and market share.
The company has expanded its footprint and now is
exporting to various CIS countries well as China.
The company is also a pioneer in establishing the country’s
largest back-end animal fattening facility at the corporate
level, to ensure consistent quality of meat to its customers.

TOMCL started off in 2010 as a private limited company in
Karachi, with a single mission i.e., to provide the highest
quality of meat and offal products to our customers around
the globe. The Company’s journey has been guided by it’s
mission and governing principles remains, which include
valuing integrity, being innovative and to offer the finest
quality of meat and allied offal products.

Our key values and work ethics revolve around producing
quality products, maintaining a motivated workforce, and
a safe working environment, while making a positive
contribution to the local community and the less privileged
sections of society.
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The Company ensures that its production processes adhere to the industry’s standard hygiene procedures,
which are in compliance with ISO 9001-2015, HACCP for Food, GMP, Gulf Standards, SASO and various
other international organizations. For the purpose, the Company is regularly certified and audited by
various local and international private and governmental food safety and veterinary organizations.

The company ensure strict implementation of Halal principles for slaughtering and treatment of animals.
The company is also certified and monitored by various Halal monitoring organizations, that include
Jamia Markaz-e Uloom-e-Islamia Pakistan and International Halal Center, Pakistan.

With a firm belief in the top quality of Pakistani cattle, which is grass-fed and produce meat of utmost
tenderness, the Company is striving to open up new markets, of which China is a recent example. The
Company'’s control processes strictly ensure that the animals are purchased from disease free zones of
the country, while regular updates of any epidemic outbreaks are continuously monitored by our
veterinary department to ensure procurement of healthy animals for production.

The Company enjoys being the pioneer in various innovations and achievements in the country's meat
industry from Pakistan. In addition to being the first company to export frozen boneless beef meat to
Saudi Arabia, the Company was also the first to initiate export of vacuum-packed boneless beef and
fresh chilled bone-in beef via sea. Pioneering the export markets like China, Jordan, Albania, USA,
Maldives and Vietnam, the Company enjoys the largest global market access from Pakistan.

The Company strives to further improve and be an outstanding example for the meat industry globally.

The vision is based on promoting quality beef and mutton animals from Pakistan by adding value to
the product to achieve better commercial gains for the country.
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MISSION

We are committed to leadership in the meat industry of Pakistan through competitive
advantage in providing the highest quality meat and edible offal products to our customers
around the globe. Furthermore, we aim to incorporate professionally trained, high quality,
motivated workforce, working as a team in an environment, which recognizes and rewards
performance, innovation and creativity, and provides for personal growth and

development.

We aim to assure access to long-term and cost effective sources with our thorough
innovations in raw material procurement, production processes and transport techniques
in order to achieve sustained growth in earnings in real terms. Last but not the least our
motive of business revolves around high ethical business values, safe and friendly

environment along with socially responsible business practices.
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The Organic Meat Company Limited ensures that it’s values and ethics are followed across business,
operations and all its shareholders.

Striving Excellence

Cohesiveness & Team Work

Respect & Equality

Integrity & Honesty

Innovation & Improvement

Corporate Responsibility
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The Company’s significant strategic objectives include contributing to the welfare of its customers by

ensuring production of quality products and services that meet relevant international standards.
Furthermore, increasing stakeholder value through continuous improvement of production processes
and innovation in product offerings while ensuring optimum efficiency remains a key objective. TOMCL
is also focused on the following objectives:

Compliance with Regulatory and Legal Requirements

Sustainable Supply of Raw Material

HSE Compliant

Explore Opportunities for Growth

Active Corporate Citizenship

- | Human Resource Development
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OUR PRODUCTS

We offer a versatile portfolio of meat and offal products. The continued growth of our business is a

testament of our well-rooted product knowledge and development which has led to our far-reaching

success. Majorly, TOMCL is an export oriented company focusing on the following products:

BEEF

Bone-in Carcasses

Beef Boneless Compensated

Beef Boneless Cuts

Beef Cubes Bone-in

Beef Meat Delicacies

Exported In Fresh Chilled, Frozen Or Cooked
Categories. Packed In Vacuum Pouches, Food
Graded Plastic Or Food Friendly Cloth.

RED AND WHITE BEEF
AND MUTTON OFFALS

Red Offal includes Liver, Kidney, Heart and Lungs
exported in fresh chilled or frozen form in
packaging as per customers’requirements. White
Offal includes Tripe, Intestines, Omasum,
Trachea, Pizzle and Aorta exported in salted
and dried form or cooked frozen form in
packaging as per customers’ requirements.

MUTTON

Bone-in Carcasses

Mutton Boneless Cuts

Mutton Cubes Bone-in

Exported In Fresh Chilled, Frozen Or Cooked
Categories. Packed In Vacuum Pouches, Food
Graded Plastic Or Food Friendly Cloth.

CAMEL

Bone-in Carcasses

Camel Cubes Bone-in

Exported In Fresh Chilled and Frozen
Categories.
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EXPORT DESTINATIONS

TOMCL enjoys the largest export network globally and has exported meat and offal products to the

following countires since its beginning:

United Arab Emirates Saudi Arabia

CISregion Qatar Maldives
Bahrain Oman Vietnam

,..+
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United State

fl

Azerbaijan Albania
-
Columbia Canada
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ACCOMPLISHMENTS

First Company from Pakistan to Export
Fresh Chilled Mutton Meat by Road in
2010

First Pakistani Company to
Export Frozen Boneless Beef Meat to
Saudi Arab via Sea in 2013

First Company From the region to Export
Vacuum Packed Fresh Boneless Beef Meat
to CIS states

Private
) Labelingy  Labeling of Beef Products for International
-ﬁm_gi Clients :

Pioneers of Export of Fresh Beef Carcasses
via Sea to Gulf States

J"g %*'r First Company in Pakistan providing Private

First Pakistani Company to export raw
material for Pet Chews to United States of
Americain 2021.

First Pakistani Company to get approved &
exported Frozen Beef Cooked Meat to

People’s Republic of China in 2024
Over PKR Over PKR

1180 497 18 1o

Billion Turnover Million Net Profit Export Destinations Years of
(2023-2024) (2023-2024) (2023-2024) Production
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COMPANY INFORMATION

Board of Directors

Mr. Nihal Cassim
(Chairman/Independent Director)

Mr. Faisal Hussain
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Ali Hussain
(Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Rizwan Punjwani
(Independent Director)

Mr. Aneek Saleh Mohammad
(Independent Director)

Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi
(Independent Director)

Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor
(Independent Director)

Audit Committee

Mr. Rizwan Punjwani
Chairman

Mr. Nihal Cassim
Member

Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi
Member

External Auditor

BDO Ebrahim & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Internal Auditor

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Company Secretary

Mr. Imran Khan

Human Resource and
Remuneration

Committee

Mr. Aneek Saleh Mohammad
Chairman

Mr. Rizwan Punjwani
Member

Mr. Ali Hussain
Member

IT Committee

Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi
Chairman

Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor
Member

Mr. Ali Hussain
Member

Tax Advisor

Saleem and Co.

Legal Advisor

Pinjani & Vadria Lawyers

Share Registrar

CorpTec Associates (Pvt.) Limited
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BANKERS

Al Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited alBaraka 0
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited .E. FLARIBAAF TR
Bank Al Habib Limited _ﬁ Bt AL Hinteb L b
Faysal Bank Limited faysalbank a
Habib Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited "?-cmenELmL
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited ‘}ﬂ Dbl Il Bk

Samba Bank Limited samba m Leolow

@ V| HF sstional Bank o Pukiann
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National Bank Of Pakistan

¢ e,
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited Banklslami =

Bank Alfalah limited A:‘mnh Alfalah

JS Bank Limited e ]S BANK
2 = =]

Askari Bank Limited askariban 4

Telenor Microfinance Bank Limited ’:EQEHDI'
(Digital Banking Partners) ’-‘-

Meezan Bank Limited Mewan P
Allied Bank Limited n AlliedBank

CBsL
United Bank Limited —
Bank of Khyber (BOK) ﬂ Bank of Hll:v. lar
Registered Address:
Survey No. 310, Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap, Karachi, Pakistan. Website

Contact # +92-346-8224601, +92-346-8224630
www.tomcl.net

Korangi Plant & Correspondence Address:
Plot No. 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi - Pakistan
Tel: +92-21-35059969, +92-21-35079969




OUR VALUABLE CUSTOMERS

Custom Pet Inc LLc 8,laall Joull 5 gaall S 5
INTERNATIONAL HUB
FOR TRADING CO., K.S.A
Aseel Al-Afia LLC
Oman
Abdullah Mohammad KIKU Trading Company
Al Ghamdi KSA LLGC UAE
Gold Crest Trading FZE UAE
Falcon Shipping &
DarT::!aFlI:;:lah Food Stuft Trading Joint Stock Co.,
g LLC UAE Hong Kong
AL DURI TRADING Haipong Trading IMP Exp
GROUP COMPANY, K.8.A  Joint Stock Co., Vietnam
>3 Ahmed A_di Mohammed DURAR AI.'BAYAN
> TRADING EST, K.S.A
QUICK MEAT MIDDLE
EAST LLG, U.A.E

st au_.m:.» @E-AHEHEULD STORES
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

Mr. Nihal Cassim
Chairman of Board of Directors

Nihal Cassim is an MBA (Finance & MIS) from McGill University. He
takes particular interest in facilitating the development of the capital

g Ty
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market, governance of public companies and building shareholder - a1
value. f;._ -
He is currently a Director on the Boards of Pakistan Stock Exchange i. 3 -

Limited, International Steels Limited, Crescent Steel & Allied Products |

e

Limited, The Organic Meat Company Limited, National Clearing
Company Limited, NIFT and Ubiquity Trading Limited. He has also
served on the Boards of Pakistan Qilfields Limited (for 9 years) and
Ferozsons Laboratories Limited (for 15 years). Nihal has served two
terms as a director on the Board of the Mutual Funds Association of
Pakistan (MUFAP).
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Nihal’s focus has expanded to philanthropic activities as a donor and as a member/trustee of The Citizens
Foundation, the Patient Aid Foundation and The Jinnah Foundation.

Mr. Faisal Hussain
Executive Director

Faisal Hussain has over 22 years working experience in the sheep
casings (offal processing) industry and 12 years of experience in the
meat processing industry. He is the Founder Shareholder/Director
& CEO of the Company.

He holds a “Master of Business Administration” degree from the
respected Institute of Business Administration (IBA) and a “Master
Of Finance” Degree from Cardiff Business School, University of Wales,
UK. He decided to come into the meat industry in year 2010, knowing
that he has an edge over all other players in the market due to his
previous experience in the Meat Offal Industry. He is the pioneer of
various innovative trends in the meat industry of Pakistan.

He brought new concepts in the industry of further adding value by offering boneless Frozen and
Vacuum packed Beef and Mutton meat along with tremendous increase in export of Offal to Far Eastern
economies. It was under his leadership that TOMCL achieved honor of being the only company in South
East Asia to have approvals of export for so many destinations including Irag, Maldives and Malaysia.
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His idea of extending the shelf life of Pakistani Beef and Mutton meat resulted in opening of markets
like CIS States for Pakistan. He has taken a single product meat industry of Pakistan which use to export
only meat carcasses before the entry of TOMCL to a multi-product industry. His recent initiative of
exporting Beef Offal as a raw material for producing Pet Food is getting good market response
internationally.

Mr. Ali Hussain
Executive Director

Ali Hussain is in charge for operations, productions and all aspects
of compliances related to processing plants of the company. Various
other departments and aspects like HR, Export, Halal Management
Systems, Animal Welfare and CSR are also headed by him. He has
been a vital part of the management team since beginning of TOMCL.
Primarily, he was managing affairs of export development and export
related licenses. Since 2015, he was assigned the affairs of the
processing factories and was designated as Chief Operating Officer.
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He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from Lahore
University of Management Sciences (LUMS) and had been president
of various student bodies in his university. Furthermore, he has done
various diplomas from London School of Economics and Political
Science in UK. He also has vast experience in food catering business
along with handling and maintaining the workplace standards for

I‘llF

HACCP, ISO 9001-2015 and GMP. His communal services in the field of sports are notable. Recently he
was a member of BOG of Sindh Cricket Association and formerly he has been the Secretary for Karachi
City Cricket Association. He also owned a catering business which was venturing food supplies to
various multinational corporations and embassies.

Mr. Rizwan Punjwani
Independent Director

Rizwan Punjwani is a Chartered Accountant and holds more than
25 years of working experience. His experience in the field of finance
and equity has helped TOMCL to grow and develop it into a financially
sound organization.

Currently, he is also a Fund Manager at RAY Securities. Prior to it, he
was Director and Chief Operating Officer at Sindh Gas where he was
primarily responsible to implement projects. Mr. Punjwani has led
the Investment Banking department of one of the largest bank of
Pakistan - National Bank of Pakistan where he gained rich experience
of handling debt and equity transaction of large ticket size.
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Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi
Independent Director

Owais Zaidi is serving on the Board as an independent director since
year 2019. He holds a “Master of Business Administration” Degree
from respected Institute of Business Administration (IBA) in Karachi.
He has a diversified exposure to various industry verticals and
business domains. He is Founder & CEO at Credit Fix — Pakistan’s first
credit market place, Co- Founder & Principal Consultant at Infinitum
Innovations which manages the largest service offices chain in
Pakistan called “The Hive". Prior to that Mr. Zaidi has been associated
with several tech companies playing key management roles.

Mr. Aneek Saleh Mohammad
Independent Director

Aneek Saleh has joined the Board in December 2020. He holds a
“Master of Business Administration” Degree from the prestigious
Institute of Business Administration (IBA) in Karachi. He is the founder
and CEO of Revelation Group, with a portfolio of companies
expanding from advertising, publications, digital platforms and
media solutions. He has been instrumental in bringing innovative
marketing solutions and the creation of strong collaborative platforms
for Pakistan. He has been the sole representative for many
international festivals and events including the most prominent
Cannes Lions Festival for Pakistan for over a decade and has played
a pivotal role in creating a space for Pakistan on many international
platforms.

',
I’|

—

il I
|I‘| ‘

“"'l

[
|
'.-I'

I |
\||IH‘ “l

!:«
i

With extensive experience of over 23 years in the field of marketing, Aneek brings with him a strong
understanding of the food industry as he has been involved with many major consumer food companies

in the strategic advisory role.

Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor
Independent Director

Sehrish Hafeez holds a BSc in Philosophy and Economics from the
prestigious London School of Economics in London, UK and has
recently completed her masters from Columbia University in USA.
Her experience includes valuation of different companies through
different valuation techniques like discounted cash flow techniques,
comparable and other approaches. She has a good understanding
of the business models and is also strategically involved in various
roles for running the business successfully.
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It is a pleasure and honor to present this report to the shareholders of The Organic Meat Company
Limited, reflecting on the performance of the Board of Directors and their effectiveness in guiding the
Company towards achieving its objectives in an increasingly challenging economic environment.

The Company faced another year of global and domestic challenges, with persistent inflation, fluctuating
energy prices, and rising costs of raw materials continuing to exert pressure on the business. Despite
these headwinds, the Company managed to navigate the complexities of the operating environment
and demonstrated resilience by achieving commendable financial results. The focus on product
diversification and entry into new international markets has proven fruitful, and Company continues
to prioritize value-added products such as pet chews and cooked beef for export. The expansion into
the Chinese market has been particularly rewarding as the Company is now one of the leading exporters
of frozen cooked beef to China from Pakistan, a key growth area for the Company. This milestone is
testament to the Company’s strategic foresight and ability to adapt to emerging opportunities.

In line with Company’s long-term strategy, the investment in the fattening farm has continued to yield
positive results, contributing to improved quality and cost-efficiency in sourcing raw materials. Moreover,
the completion of the second phase of our production facility expansion in September 2024 further
strengthened the Company’s operational capacity, enhancing its ability to meet rising demand in both
local and international markets. The Korangi facility, along with the new phase of expansion, has enabled
the Company to produce a wider range of value-added products, which will play a key role in sustaining
growth in the coming years.

The acquisition of the offals and sheep casing company in Karachi Export Processing Zone (KEPZ), has
been progressing steadily and the operations will be integrated smoothly within the Company ongoing
operations by end of December 2024. This acquisition shall open new channels for sourcing raw materials
from abroad, allowing our subsidiary to process them domestically for export to the Far East as well as
the European markets and reflects the ongoing commitment of the Company to enhancing shareholder
value.

The Board has remained focused on strategic governance, overseeing the implementation of effective
risk management frameworks, and ensuring that the Company is well-positioned to capitalize on future
opportunities while safeguarding its assets. The proactive approach to governance and strategic
realignment has enabled the Company to adapt to the ever-evolving economic landscape. The Board's
advocacy for prudent financial management and operational efficiencies has ensured that despite the
inflationary pressures, the Company has continued to deliver solid financial results. The year saw a
remarkable increase in export volumes, particularly in the UAE and China, with the Company’s export
growth standing at 62% year-on-year. This performance underscores the strength of the Company’s
strategy and the dedication of the management team.
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Significant improvements were made to the Board's governance structure in the past year, with the
reconstitution of key committees to enhance decision-making processes. The Audit, HR, and IT
Committees, all chaired by independent directors, have been instrumental in driving transparency,
accountability, and efficiency. These changes have strengthened the governance framework and enabled
the Board to focus on long-term strategy while ensuring that operational oversight is maintained at
the highest standards. The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee has played a key role in
streamlining the compensation structures to ensure alignment with the Company’s strategic goals,
while the Information Technology Committee has supported the digital transformation efforts to
improve operational efficiencies. These changes have contributed to more effective governance,
enhancing our ability to respond quickly and strategically to both risks and opportunities.

Additionally, the Company'’s financial strength and robust governance framework have been validated
by an improvement in our credit rating. In 2024, VIS Credit Rating Company improved the entity ratings
to ‘A/A-1', with a stable outlook. This improved rating reflects the Company’s strong market position,
sound financial management, and the successful execution of its strategy. The improvement in credit
rating is a testament to the Company’s disciplined approach to governance, risk management, and
operational performance.

The Board has continued to apply a rigorous governance framework, ensuring that all business decisions
are made with long-term success in mind. The Board committees have played an instrumental role in
guiding the Company through another financial year. The audit committee has diligently reviewed the
financial statements and ensured that the Company’s internal controls remain robust and effective. The
human resources and remunerations committee has been active in refining our HR policies and ensuring

that compensation structures are aligned with the strategic goals of the business. Meanwhile, the IT
committee has made significant strides in enhancing our technological infrastructure, a key component
of the Company'’s strategy to drive operational efficiency.

The Board conducted its annual performance evaluation, which revealed that the Directors remain
highly engaged with the Company’s strategic planning and risk management initiatives. The independent
Directors, in particular, have continued to offer valuable insights and have been instrumental in fostering
informed decision-making. This ongoing self-assessment underscores the Board’s commitment to
maintaining a high standard of governance and ensuring that the Company is on a path of sustainable
growth.

The composition of the Board reflects a diverse mix of expertise, with Directors bringing varied experience
in fields such as finance, marketing, IT, and the food industry. This diversity has been crucial in navigating
the complexities of the markets in which the Company operates. The Company remains committed to
ensuring full compliance with regulatory requirements, and the internal and external audits have
confirmed the soundness of its financial reporting and internal controls.
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Health, safety, and environmental compliance continue to be at the forefront of the Company’s
operational priorities. The Company is proud to report that it has successfully maintained all HSEQ
standards, with ongoing improvements in processes. The Sindh Environmental Protection Agency
(SEPA) certification, received this year, further highlights the commitment to environmental stewardship.
These achievements would not have been possible without the hard work, dedication, and commitment
of the management and employees, to whom | extend my deepest gratitude. Their contribution has
been pivotal in helping the Company achieve its goals.

| would also like to take this opportunity to thank the valued customers, fellow Directors, the Ministry
of National Food Security and Research, the regulators especially the Pakistan Stock Exchange and the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan as well as all other stakeholders for their unwavering
support throughout this challenging yet rewarding year. We remain optimistic about the future, confident
that the Company’s strategy will continue to deliver value to its shareholders and position The Organic
Meat Company Limited as a key player in the meat export industry for the foreseeable future.

S G

Nihal Cassim
Dated: September 28, 2024 Chairman of Board of Directors
The Organic Meat Company Ltd.
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The Board of Directors of The Organic Meat Company Limited (TOMCL) is pleased to present its report
to the shareholders for the financial year ended June 30, 2024. The Organic Meat Company Ltd. is a
world-class meat producer satisfying all the international standards of hygiene and agricultural produce
practices. Our two processing plants and fattening farm based in Karachi, Pakistan, possesses various
facilities to provide tender, fresh, and healthy meat to our valued customers globally. The Company’s
motto is: “We Produce The Best”

TOMCL has successfully navigated the challenging macroeconomic environment in Pakistan and
internationally by focusing on sustainable growth, operational efficiencies, and expanding its presence
in the Chinese and CIS markets. The Company now has the distinction as being the single largest
exporter of frozen cooked beef to China and one of only two companies in Pakistan to have been
approved by the Chinese authorities.

Despite the tough economic landscape, FY 2024 was a year of resilience and growth for TOMCL. The
Company achieved impressive results across its operations, demonstrating its ability to manage costs
effectively while expanding market share. The strong financial performance is a reflection of TOMCL's
export-oriented strategy, product diversification, and ongoing efforts to optimize its cost base. These
efforts allowed the Company to deliver robust growth in revenue and profitability, despite facing
economic challenges with fluctuating energy costs, and continued high inflation putting additional
pressure on cost of production and administration.

Key Highlights for FY 2024

During the financial year 2024, TOMCL achieved significant milestones that underscored its commitment
to operational excellence and strategic market expansion. Below are some of the key highlights for the
year:

1. Export Growth and Market Expansion: TOMCL's export volumes rose by 62% year-on-
year, driven by increased demand in key international markets such as the UAE, China, and other
Gulf countries. The Company also successfully secured long-term export contracts and diversified
its customer base by entering new markets, further solidifying its position as a leading exporter
of meat products from Pakistan. This growth was fueled by the Company’s strong reputation for
delivering high-quality, halal certified meat to these international markets.

2, Entry into the Chinese Market: In October 2023, TOMCL became the first Pakistani
company to receive approval from the General Administration of Customs China (GACC) to
export heat-treated frozen beef. This milestone opened a new chapter for the Company, allowing
it to tap into one of the world’s largest meat markets. The initial shipments to China have been
met with positive reception, and TOMCL expects this market to become a key revenue driver
in the coming years.
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3. Cost Management Initiatives: In an inflationary environment where raw material costs
and energy prices were rising, TOMCL implemented a range of cost management strategies.
These included renegotiating long-term supplier contracts to secure more favorable pricing,
improving operational efficiencies through better utilization of resources, and reducing waste
across all production lines. The Company also focused on optimizing its supply chain to mitigate
the impact of rising fuel and transportation costs. In addition, the company has consistently
been investing in BMR activities which has ensured that maintenance costs for plant, machinery
and equipment are managed at acceptable levels.

4, Operational Expansion and Facility Enhancement: During the year, the Company
completed the first phase of its capacities expansion project which added significant chilling
and blast freezing capacities to its existing operations. In addition, a new beef deboning line
was also installed to support the expected increase in exports to China. TOMCL in September
2024, completed the second phase of its production facility expansion. This expansion increased
the Company’s production capacity by 40%, enabling it to meet growing demand from both
local and international markets. The additional capacity will allow TOMCL to produce a wider
range of value-added meat products, catering to the newly entered Chinese market.

5. Renewal of UAE Export Contract: TOMCL successfully renewed its long-term export
contract with the UAE in April 2024. The UAE has consistently been a key export market for
TOMCL, and the renewal of this contract will ensure a steady stream of revenue from this critical
region. This contract is a testament to the trust and confidence that international buyers have
in TOMCL's products and its commitment to delivering top-quality meat products.

Financial Performance

TOMCL's financial performance for the year 2024 remained robust, with significant growth across all
major financial metrics. The Company successfully navigated rising costs, particularly in raw materials
and energy prices, while maintaining profitability. Below is a comparative analysis of TOMCL's financial

performance for FY 2024 and FY 2023.
(Rupees in Millions)




The increase in net sales was driven by higher export volumes, particularly in the UAE, Uzbekistan and
China. Despite rising costs of raw materials and energy prices due to high inflation in Pakistan, the
Company was able to maintain a healthy gross profit margin by implementing various cost optimization
strategies. Operating expenses increased marginally due to the expanded production capacity and the
associated administrative costs, but TOMCL managed to keep these expenditures under control. The
year saw a relatively stable exchange rate regime with controlled exchange rates throughout the year
by monetary and fiscal intervention in the money markets by the Government.

This has resulted in negligible exchange gains as compared to FY 2023 which is the major cause of the
reduced net profitability.

TOMCL has improved its real EPS considerably from Rs 0.71 per share last year to Rs 2.80 per share for
the year ended June 30, 2024 after adjusting for extraordinary exchange gains earned during the year
ended June 30, 2023 resulting from severe devaluation of the Pak Rupee against the US dollar.

Challenges and Economic Environment

Pakistan's economic environment during FY 2024 posed significant challenges for businesses across
all sectors, including TOMCL. High inflation, which persisted in double digits, drove up the cost of raw
materials, including livestock feed and packaging materials. In addition, rising energy prices due to
global oil price fluctuations had a direct impact on the Company's production and transportation costs.
These factors have resulted in the reduced net margins as exchange rates remained controlled by
Government monetary and fiscal tightening initiatives and interventions.

Financial Reporting

Your Company'’s financial reporting is based on the approved International Accounting Standards and
International Financial Reporting Standards as applicable in Pakistan as well as the provision of the
Companies Act, 2017.

Related Party Transactions

Related party transactions are approved by the Board. These transactions were in line with the
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Companies Act, 2017. The
Company maintains a thorough and complete record of all such transactions. The details of related
party transactions are disclosed in notes to the financial statements.

Credit Rating

In 2024, VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (VIS) has reaffirmed the entity ratings of The Organic Meat
Company Limited (TOMCL) at‘A/A-1’(Single A /A- One). The long-term rating of ‘A’ indicates good credit
quality with adequate protection factors, while the short-term rating of ‘A-1'reflects high certainty of
timely payment with excellent liquidity factors and minor risk factors. The rating outlook is ‘Stable’.
Key factors supporting the rating upgrade include TOMCL's strong market position as a major processor
and exporter of red meat, the largest capacity in slaughtering to packaging, and a significant presence
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in 16 export markets. TOMCL's product range includes various forms of processed meat, pet chews, and
cooked meat products. The company’s efficient business model minimizes wastage and leverages
byproducts.

Manufacturing and Operations

We are thrilled to announce that Your Company has achieved outstanding results across all production
sites by significantly increasing efficiency levels. Our relentless focus on innovation, process optimization,
and product development has driven us to not only enhance efficiency but also minimize waste,
accelerate delivery times, and optimize stock management.

At Your Company, we continuously invest in modernizing and upgrading our production facilities,
capitalizing on every opportunity to stay ahead in the industry. Our commitment to excellence is evident
in our ongoing efforts to expand product lines and maintain the highest standards of quality and safety,
catering to both local and global markets.

Through regular training programs conducted by SGS and other renowned institutions, we refine our
manufacturing operations, ensuring top-tier efficiency and control. By harnessing cutting-edge
technologies, we deliver value-added meat products with extended shelf life, empowering us to maintain
a competitive edge in the most demanding environments.

Our diverse product portfolio is designed to meet the varying needs of our customers. From fresh chilled
and frozen bone-in and boneless meats to cooked meat products and pet food, as well as all types of
edible red and white offal, Your Company is dedicated to satisfying every meat requirement, ensuring
superior quality and service.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Your Company is deeply committed to driving meaningful change for the planet, our nation, and the
communities we serve. We actively support initiatives that reflect our core values and long-term vision
for a better world. Additionally, we empower our employees to grow as civic leaders, encouraging them
to embrace social responsibility both within the workplace and in their personal lives. Together, we are
making a positive impact, one action at a time.

Operating and Financial Data

The Company has provided its operating and financial data and key ratios for the last six years in the
annexures to the Annual Report.

Future Prospects and Outlook

Despite the challenges faced in FY 2024, TOMCL remains optimistic about its future growth prospects.
The successful entry into the Chinese market, coupled with the increased production capacity from the
recent expansion, positions the Company well for sustained growth in the coming years. TOMCL will
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continue to focus on diversifying its product portfolio, entering new markets, and optimizing its cost
structure to drive long-term profitability.

The Board of Directors (BOD) and its committees

Your Company is governed by a Board of seven directors who bring extensive experience and exercise
the utmost care in their decision-making. The Board is composed of two executive directors and five
independent directors, including a female director, ensuring diverse and balanced perspectives. The
roles of the chairman and the chief executive are clearly defined, promoting strong leadership and
effective governance.

The audit, IT, and HR committees are chaired by independent directors, further reinforcing our
commitment to transparency and accountability. All directors have successfully completed the Directors
Certification Training Program, which exceeds the standards set by the Code of Corporate Governance,
Regulations 2019.

Our directors have understanding of their roles, responsibilities, and powers as outlined in the Companies
Act, 2017, and the PSX Rule Book. In addition, the Company has implemented a well-structured
remuneration policy for its non-executive and independent directors, ensuring alignment with industry
best practices.

To enhance operational efficiency and governance, the Board has delegated specific functions to
specialized committees, each of which plays a vital role in driving the Company’s success. The committees
are outlined as follows:

a) Board Audit Committee (BAC)

The Audit Committee is composed of three independent directors, including the Chairman, in accordance
with the Code of Corporate Governance, Regulations 2019. The Board of Directors has clearly outlined
the terms of reference for the committee, ensuring its responsibilities are well-defined.
The Audit Committee plays a pivotal role in reviewing quarterly and annual financial statements, as
well as internal audit reports, in preparation for Board meetings. Additionally, it is entrusted with the
oversight of the company's internal control systems through close collaboration with the internal audit
department, ensuring the effectiveness of both operational and financial controls.
The esteemed members of the committee are:

= Mr. Rizwan Abbas — Chairman
= Mr. Nihal Cassim
. Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi

This structure reflects the Board’s commitment to upholding strong governance and maintaining the
highest standards of transparency and accountability.

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HRRC)

The committee consists of three Board members: two independent directors and one executive director.
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The committee is chaired by an independent director, who is responsible for overseeing the formulation
and execution of the Company's human resource management policies. Additionally, the committee
sets employee remuneration, ensuring alignment with the business strategy and long-term objectives.
The current members of the committee are:

= Mr. Aneek Saleh Mohammad - Chairman
= Mr. Rizwan Abbas
= Mr. Ali Hussain

) Information Technology Committee (ITC)

The committee consists of three Board members, including two independent directors and one executive
director. The committee is chaired by an independent director, ensuring impartial leadership. Its primary
mission is to support the Board in maintaining robust, reliable IT systems and services. Additionally, the
committee oversees the quality, integrity, and accuracy of system reporting and internal controls within
the Company.

Current members of the committee are:
. Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi - Chairman
= Mr. Ali Hussain

= Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor

Meeting of the Board and its Committees

Throughout the year, the Board of Directors (BOD) held six meetings, the Audit Committee (BAC)
convened four times, the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee (HRRC) met once, and the
Information Technology Committee (ITC) held one meeting. The table below provides details on the
attendance of each director at these meetings.
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Directors who were unable to attend board or committee meetings due to legitimate reasons were
granted a leave of absence in accordance with applicable legal provisions.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

We are glad to report that our Company has complied with the Code of Corporate Governance in terms
of corporate and financial reporting framework. The following points summarize our compliance status:

] The management of the Company has prepared the financial statements in a fair and
accurate manner, reflecting its financial position, performance, cash flows and changes
in equity.

. The Company has consistently applied appropriate accounting policies in preparing the
financial statements and has made reasonable and prudent accounting estimates.

] The Company has maintained proper books of accounts as required by the law.

. The Company has followed the International Accounting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, in preparing the financial statements.

. The Company has no significant doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern.

. The Company has a sound system of internal controls that is monitored by internal and

external auditors. The Company strives to improve and strengthen its internal controls
on a continuous basis.
] The details about taxes are provided in the notes to the accounts.

Risk Management and Strategy for Mitigating Risk

The Board has been closely monitoring the socioeconomic landscape and associated internal and
external risks that could impact the Company’s operations and overall performance. Proactive in its
approach, the Board has focused on identifying, assessing, and managing these risks. The Audit
Committee maintains a comprehensive risk register, which is reviewed on a regular basis. Additionally,
relevant committees continuously reassess and update policies to ensure alignment with the evolving
environment.

Key risks identified include fluctuations in the availability and pricing of raw materials, the appreciation
of the Pakistani rupee affecting export revenues, changes in shipping logistics leading to increased
freight charges, uncertainty surrounding duty drawback schemes, delays in payment receipts, rising
interest rates on loans, potential credit losses from unsecured customers, currency devaluation in
competing countries, and the spread of diseases among local livestock.

To mitigate these risks, the Company has implemented hedging strategies for raw materials, currency,
and shipping risks, and has taken steps to safeguard receivables and advances. Furthermore, the
management has actively sought government support for the meat export sector by advocating for
consistent pricing and policies. Industry associations have also been encouraged to adopt standardized
trade practices.

Safety, Health and Environment
Your Company places a high priority on environmental protection and is committed to reducing the

environmental impact of its operations and products. We strictly adhere to all relevant environmental
legislation, regulations, and standards governing pollution control within our country.
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We are proud to announce that Your Company has achieved environmental certification from the Sindh
Environment Protection Agency (SEPA), further underscoring our dedication to fostering a greener
Pakistan.

In addition, to safeguard the health and safety of our employees both at work and at home, we have
implemented comprehensive compliance protocols across all operational premises.

Code of Business Principles

As a prominent meat exporter, we take pride in our strong reputation for ethical integrity. We have
implemented a comprehensive Code of Business Principles and Ethical Standards, which has been fully
embraced and endorsed by all directors and employees of the company.

Future Prospects and Outlook

Despite the challenges faced in FY 2024, TOMCL remains optimistic about its future growth prospects.
The successful entry into the Chinese market, coupled with the increased production capacity from the
recent expansion, positions the Company well for sustained growth in the coming years. TOMCL will
continue to focus on diversifying its product portfolio, entering new markets, and optimizing its cost
structure to drive long-term profitability.

Auditors

The Board of Directors has recommended the re-appointment of BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered
Accountants as the external auditors for the next financial year ending June 30, 2025. This recommendation
is subject to the approval of the shareholders at the upcoming Annual General Meeting (AGM). BDO
Ebrahim & Co. has demonstrated professionalism and expertise in conducting the company’s audits,
and the Board believes their continued engagement will support the company's financial reporting
process effectively.

Pattern of Shareholding

The shareholding pattern, as mandated by the Code of Corporate Governance, is included in this report.
It also provides details of any share transactions involving the Company’s Directors, key management
personnel, their spouses, and minor children.

Board’s Commitment

The Board remains committed to creating long-term value for its shareholders by pursuing strategic

growth opportunities, improving operational efficiencies, and strengthening the Company's market
position in the global meat industry.
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FROM JUNE 30, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2024

For the Year ended June 30™

Description
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
(Amounts in PKR Million) PKR Million)

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Sales 2,577 3,384 3,928 4,658 6,365 11,797
Cost of Goods Sold (2,169) (2,754) (3,278) (4,048) (5,512) (10,219)
Gross Profit 408 630 650 610 853 1,578
Operating Profit 218 373 416 199 313 792
EBITDA 459 487 556 685 1,079 1,031
Depreciation and Amortization (123) (114) (126) (142) (133) (157)
Financial Charges (72) (90) (89) (88) (181) (231)
Profit before Taxation 265 283 340 455 789 645
Taxation (47) (17) (37) (44) (67) (161)
Profit after Taxation 218 266 303 411 722 497
Statement of Financial Position
Non-Current Assets 1,245 1,420 1,827 1,863 2,516 3,089
Current Assets 1,323 1,310 1,816 2,405 3,299 3,148
Total Assets 2,569 2,730 3,643 4,268 5,815 6,237
Paid-up Capital 718 718 1,118 1,230 1,350 1,485
Equity 1,621 1,887 2,744 3,155 4,540 4,944
Short-Term Borrowings 719 659 698 779 945 805
Non-Current Liabilities 15 - 30 85 71 163
Current Liabilities 932 843 870 1,027 1,205 1,131
Stock-in-trade 201 239 188 117 245 184
Trade debts 824 702 911 1,598 2,265 2,275
Trade and other payables 139 145 142 196 144 149
Cash Flow Statement
Operating Activities 28 377 27 (18) 47 970
Investing Activities (1112) (290) (533) (152) (114) (67)
Financing Activities 73 (39) 572 67 (156) (27)
Net increase in Cash (12) 49 67 (103) (223) 269
Net Cash Balance 5 7 125 142 219 348
Capital Expenditure (1112) (289) (533) (174) (120) (348)
Sales Growth (%) 26 31 16 19 37 85
EBITDA Growth (%) 71 6 14 23 58 (5)
Net Profit Growth (%) 52 22 14 36 138 (31)
Margins
Gross Margin (%) 16 19 17 13 13 13
EBITDA Margin (%) 13 14 14 15 17 9
Net Margin (%) 8 8 8 9 11 4
Break-up Value per Share (Rs.) 22.57 26.28 24.50 25.65 33.63 21.03
Profitability and Earnings Ratios
Profit after Tax 218 266 303 411 722 497
Earnings per Share (PKR) - as per audited accounts 1.95 2.38 2.71 3.34 5.35 3.35
Return on Equity (%) 13 14 11 13 16 10
Return on Asset (%) 8 10 8 10 12 8
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
FROM JUNE 30, 2019 TO JUNE 30, 2024

For the Year ended June 30"

Description
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
(Amounts in PKR Million) PKR Million)

Balance Sheet Ratios
Fixed Asset Turnover (x) 2.07 2.38 2.15 2.50 2.53 3.82
Asset Turnover (x) 1.00 1.24 1.08 1.09 1.09 1.89
Capex to Total Assets (%) 4 11 15 4 2 5.58
Current Ratio (x) 1.42 1.55 2.09 2.34 2.74 2.78
Inventory Turnover (days) 28 29 24 14 12 7.66
Receivables Turnover (days) 139 82 75 98 111 70.23
Payables Turnover (days) 26 14 16 15 11 5.24
Leverage Ratios
EBITDA/Interest (x) 4.80 5.41 6.25 7.78 5.96 4.46
(EBITDA - Capex) 217 198 23 511 959 684
(EBITDA - Capex)/Interest (x) 3.06 2.20 0.26 5.81 5.30 2.95
Number of Shares Outstanding 72 72 112 123 135 148
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jit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
ernal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit

=5
=]
3

I d i
countin g and Interna ntrod swsker Cie
&

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Awdit Committee, and upon recommendation
of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related
party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent
of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement
of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with
the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended N

2024. H" p—

KARACHI BDO EBRAHIM & CO.
. CHARTERED ACCOUMTANTS
DATED: 0 3 GE‘F mﬁ Engagement Partner: Tulfikar Ali Causer

UDIN: CR2024 10067 smnvjC 10k
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with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019
For the year ended June 30, 2024

The Organic Meat Company Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations”) in the following
manner:

The total number of directors are 7 (Seven) as per following:

Male: Six

Female: One

The composition of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) is as follows:
Category Name
Independent Directors Mr. Nihal Cassim

Mr. Rizwan Abbas

Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi
Mr. Aneek Saleh Mohammad
Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor

Executive Directors

Mr. Faisal Hussain
Mr. Ali Hussain

Female Director Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company.

The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
date of approval or updating is maintained by the company.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of
Board.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

The directors are well aware of their duties and responsibilities under the Code. All Seven directors
have obtained certification under Directors’ Certification Training Program. Therefore, over all
of the Board is qualified under the criteria of DTP as per Code.

The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Board Audit Committee
Mr. Rizwan Abbas — Chairman
Mr. Nihal Cassim
Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
Aneek Saleh Mohammad - Chairman
Mr. Rizwan Abbas
Mr. Ali Hussain

) Information Technology Committee
Syed Owais Hasan Zaidi - Chairman
Ms. Sehrish Hafeez Mastoor
Mr. Ali Hussain

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:

Board Audit Committee Quarterly
Human Resource & Remuneration Committee Yearly
Information Technology Committee Yearly
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15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function supervised by a qualified Head of
Internal Audit who is considered suitably experienced for the purpose and is conversant with
the policies and procedures of the company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all of their
partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on
code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the
audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the
chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director
of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

We confirm that all the requirements of the regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 have been
complied with.

Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 (non-mandatory requirements) are below:

S.NO REQUIRMENT EXPLANATION Reg. No

The board is responsible for governance | The board will ensure the company | 10A
and oversight of sustainability risks and | addresses sustainability-related risks | (1)(3)(4)

opportunities and takes appropriate and opportunities, while also
measures to address it. Further, the overseeing periodic reviews and
board ensures that the Company’s monitoring of the company’s

sustainability and DE&I related strategies | sustainability and DE&l strategies. The
are periodically reviewed and monitored. | recent requirement introduced by the
SECP through the June 12, 2024

notification will be complied with in

due course.
The board may establish a dedicated The Board has not yet established a | 10A (5)
sustainability committee or assign separate Sustainability Committee.
additional responsibilities to an existing | However, the recent requirement
board committee. introduced by the SECP through the

notification dated June 12, 2024, will
be complied with in due course.
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S.NO REQUIRMENT EXPLANATION Reg. No

3 | The Board may constitute a separate | The Board addresses the 29
committee, designated as the | responsibilities typically assigned
nomination committee, of such number | directly to a nomination committee
and class of directors, as it may deem [ as needed, so establishing a separate
appropriate in its circumstances. | committee is not deemed necessary.

4 | The Board may constitute the risk Board in its meeting deliberated and 30
management committee, of such determined that it is equipped to
number and class of directors, as it may | handle all risk management matters
deem appropriate in its circumstances, | directly, with oversight from the audit
to carry out a review of effectiveness of | committee. The audit committee
risk management procedures and oversees the implementation of risk
present a report to the Board. management policies and the

presentation of various risks in
financial statements, including
financial, market, credit, and liquidity
risks, among others.

5 | The Directors’ Report shall include the The Directors' report stated that the |[34(2)(iv)
remuneration policy of non-executive Board of Directors has formulated a
directors including independent remuneration policy for the
directors, as approved by the Board, Company's non-executive and
which shall also include disclosing the independent Directors.
significant features and elements
thereof.

6 | The company may post the following onits | The Company is fully compliant to 35 (1)

website:

1) key elements of its significant policies
including but not limited to the following:
(i) communication and disclosure policy;
(ii) Code of conduct for members of

board of directors, senior management and
other employees;

(iii) Risk management policy;

(iv) Internal control policy;

(v) Whistle blowing policy;

Corporate social responsibility / sustainability/
environmental, social and governance related

policy.

the regulatory requirements for
maintenance of our robust and
updated website as contained under
SECP SRO No.119(i)/2019 dated 3'd
October, 2019 and any amendments
and additions made there to in the
subsequent periods.
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S.NO REQUIRMENT

EXPLANATION

Reg. No

7 | The company may post the following on
its website:

Brief synopsis of terms of reference of
the Board’s committees including: (i)
Audit Committee (ii) HR and
Remuneration Committee (iii)
Nomination Committee

Since this requirement is not
mandatory the Company has not
posted a brief synopsis of its board
committees on its website

35(1)

On behalf of the Board of Directors

NIHAL CASSIM

Chairman

Karachi: Dated 28-09-2024

\ .MIImn.O

NS LAAAANA W

FAISAL HUSSAIN

Chief Executive Officer
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Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2024:
(i) Mean Gender Pay Gap: 97.78%
(ii) Median Gender Pay Gap: 182.06%

(iii) Any other data/ details as deemed relevant: The Organic Meat Company Limited is pleased to
report a positive gender pay gap in favour of female employees against their male counterparts
which is indicative of its diversity and inclusive employee constitution.

' Y a uf‘ A (",

U e 22 W ?

Faisal Hussain
(Signed by CEO/ director on behalf of Board of Directors of the Company)
Date: 28-09-2024

47




Tel: +92 21 3568 3030 2nd Floar, Block-C
Fao: «%1 7% 3568 423% Laksen Sepuare, Bailding Mo
wew.bdo . com.ph Larwar Shaheed Road

Kassohi- 74200
Pakistan

IMDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Opinian

we have audited the annexed financial statements of THE ORGAMNIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED [the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 10, 2024, statement of profit or
loss, staternent of comprehensive income, the statement of cash flows, the statement of changes in equity
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best

of our knowledge and beliefl, were necessary for the purposes of the pudit.

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, the
statement of cash flows, and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes forming part
thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017}, in the manner so reqguired and respectively
give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at June 30, 2024, and of the profit, its
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year then ended.

Basks for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in
Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code} and we have
fulfilled our ather ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate o provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our prefessional judgment, were of the most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context
af our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matlers.

Page - 1
BDO Ebrabim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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IBDO

The following are the Key audit matters:

5. No

Key audit matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Existence and valuation of stock in trade

As disciosed In notes 9 to the annexed
financial statements, the Company held
stock-in-trade amounting to Rs. 184.08 million
as at June 30, 2024,

As described in notes 4.7 to the financial
statements, stock-in-trade ¢ measred at a
loweer of cost and net realizable value.

Due to the significance of inventory balances
and related estimations involved invaluing the
inventory, we considered this as & key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures to assess the existence
and waluation of inventory included the
follawing:

* ‘We obtained an understanding of the

Company's process with respect to the
existence and valuation of stock-in-trade.

e We attended the physical count of stock in

trade to observe the management's
process of measurement.,

» 'We compared on sample basis specific
purchases with underlying supporting
documenits,

«  We evaluated the appropriateness of the
basis and process used by management in
determining the net realizable value of
stock in trade,

«  We assessed the appropriateness of
Company's accounting policy for valuation
of stock in trade and compliance of the
policy with applicable accounting and
reporting standard,

# ‘We performed testing on a sample af items
to assecs the net realizable value of the
stock in trade held and evaluated the
adequacy of provision for slow moving and
obsolete stock (if any); and

+ We evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures presented in the financial
staternents regarding stock in trade and
stores and spares (n accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

Page - 2
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Yaluation of biological assets

As disclosed in note 10 to the annexed
financlal statements, the Company held
biclogical assets amounting to Rs. 71.98
million as at June 30, 2024,

As described in notes 4.5 to the financial
statements, biological assets ts measured at
fafr value less estimated point-of-sale costs,
with any resultant gain or loss recognized in
profit or loss account. Point-of-sale costs
inclede all costs that would be necedsany to
sell the assets, excluding costs necessary Lo
get the assets to market. The falr value of
livestock is based on the market price of
livestock of similar age, breed and genetic
merit.

Due to the significance of biological assets
balances and related estimations involved in
valuing the biolegical assets, we considered
this as a key awdit matter.

Dur audit procedures to assess the valuation
of biological assets included the following:

+ ‘We obtained an understanding of the
Company's process with respect Lo the
valuation of blological assets,

% We attended the physical head count of
and observed the weights of animals.

# We assessed the appropriateness and
consistency of Company's valuation
method for biological assets with
spplicable accounting and reporting
standard.

+ We tested the fair value assumptions
used by the Company, including market
prices of similar stock and point of sale
costs, by comparing them to market data
and industry benchmarks.

« ‘W cbserved yield of animals slaughtered
during the year and performed analytical
review procedures on yields which is
obtained from the same kind of stock for

the year.

s 'We evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures presented in the financial
statements regarding biological assets in
accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework.

Page - 3
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Revenue rﬂ:i}inirlnn

As disclosed in note 26 to the annexed

finamcizal statements, the Company reported
revEmge amounting to Rs. 11,797,735 million,

We have considered revenue as a key audit
matter as it is one of the key performance
indicators of the Company's performance due
bo the fact that profitability has a consegutial
impact on the share price of the Compary.

Secondly revenue  has  been  increased

significantly i.e, B5.35% as compared 1o last
year, In addition, revenue was also considered
as an area of significant audit risk as part of
the awdit process,

Qur audit procedures to assess the recognition
of revenue included the following:

» We sbtained understanding of the design
and  implementation of controls in
relatlon to revenue recognition,

+« e considered the appropriateness of
the Company’'s révenue recognition

policies.

« ‘We obtained wunderstanding of the
revenue related process.

¢« We performed substantive anaiytical
procedures based on historical sales,
seasonal fluctuation and review of prices
charged to customers including changes
made during the year.

« 'We perform test of details on revenue
recognized during the year on a sample
basis, including review of order receipt,
imvoicing and dispatched.

« We performed cut-off procedures on
transactions OCCUrTing either
immediately before or after the year énd
to assess the recording of revenue fn
correct aocounting period; and

»  We evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures presented in the financial
statements regarding  revenue  in
accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework,
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| Trade debts

4.

A discrepancy in the valuation or existence of |
trade debts could cause the assets to be
materially misstated, which would impact the
Company’s reparted financial position as the
valuation of aforesaid head is one of the main
drivers of movements in the total assets of the
Company.

Managerment estimates the collectible amount
of trade debts through expected credit loss
(ECL} approach. An estimated provision is
made against trade debts on the basis of
lifetime expected credit loss model as
explained in note 4.8 whereas trade debts
considered frrecoverable are written off.

In view of the significance of trade debts in
relation to the total assets of the Company,
we hawe considered it as a key audit matter
dipe b0 the skgnificant management judgment
invelved in determining the proviston for
expected credit losses and that the existence
and carrying amount of trade debts could be
material to the performance of the Company.

Our audit procedures to assess the trade |
debts included the following:

We circularized confirmation toa sample
of trade debts with the ouwtstanding
balance at the end of the reporting
period.

We examined on a sample basis evidence
related to post year-end receipts.

We considered the appropriateness for
expected credit losses (ECL) against
trade debts as per the Company®s policy
and assessed compliance with applicable
accoiEnting stamdards.

We reviewed the methodology developed
and applied by the Company to estimate
the ECL in relation to trade debts and
evaluated the assumpiions wsed in
applying the ECL methodology based on
historical information and qualitative
factors as relevant for such estimates.

We evaluated the relevance,
completeness, and accuracy of the
source data used for compartation of ECL.

We checked the mathematical accuracy
aof the ECL model by performing
recalculation on best basis.

We reviewed the adequacy of the
disclosures and presentation of frade
debts as per the requirements of
applicabie financial reporting
framework.

Page - 5
BOO Ebrahirm & Co. Charlersd ACCountanis

et eted pabimrnaTphap o b g menbeer of B0 badeeratan |
3l wpdeperr e raari Pupe D ipes,

Tl giir= &

it of

S o FakHER

RN T nilermaimng D rasamre

rrrrr

o, i U company lmiled E= 7

52




IBDO

Capital Expenditures

As disclosed in notes 5.2 to the annexed
financial staterments, The Company has made
a significant capital expenditure in capital
projects on account of balancing, new
slttering line and new cook meat. The total
additions made during the year in operating
fived assets amounts to Rs. 278.61 millien.

The capital expenditure made during the year
constitute a substantial transaction that
requires significant judements related to the
capitalization of eligible cost components,
timing of capitalization and estimating their
useful lives and residual value.

Accordingly, we have identified capital
expenditure as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures to assess the
capital expenditures included the
following:

We tesied on a sample basis, the costs
incurred on  projects  with relevant
supporting decumentation and contracts.

We also evaluated the useful economic
lives assigned with reference to the
Company’s historical — ewperience,
including assessing the level of fully
depreciated assets held by the Company.

We checked the timing of capitalization
by examining, on a sample basis, the
completion  certificates from  the
Company™s technical departments.

We visited the sites where significant
capital profjects are ongeing Lo
understand the nature of the projects.

We evaluated the adequacy of the
disclosures presented in the financial
statements regarding property, plant,
and egquipment in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting
framework.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Therean

Management is responsible for the other infgrmation. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report

therean.

Our opinicn on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility s to read the other information
and, in doing $o, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or ouwr knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 8 material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact, 'We have nothing to report in this regard,

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements
of Companies Act, 201 7{XIX of 2017) and for such internal control a5 management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud ar error.

In preparing the financial statements, management i responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
gaing concern basis of accounting unbess management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease

operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.
Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our chjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from rmaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to fssue an auditor’s report that

includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 154s as applicable in Pakistan will always detect 3 material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

bask of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting
& material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud many
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

controd.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company”s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of acoounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events of

conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,

«  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required te draw attention in cur auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are inadequate, o
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continug

a5 a golng concem,

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financlal statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our auwdit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of
maost significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor”s report unless law ar regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that & matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a] proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 it d

of 2017);
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b} the statement of financial position, Statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income,

the statement of cash flows, and the statement of changes in equity together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XX of 2017) and are in agreement

with the books of account and returns;

c] investments made, expenditures incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the
purpese of the Company's business; and

d} no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushe Ordinance, 1950,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Zulfikar Ali Causer.

Other matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023 were audited by another firm
of chartered accountants who had expressed an ungualified opinion thereon vide their report dated

October 05, 2023,

KARACHI .I'f‘u\ﬁ———————"'—"\

DATED: 13 (T 202 :1'::3“ E_Em;m A? CETW

UDIM: AR2D241006 TDAUTEYRYC
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Advance against acquisition of shares
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Stock-in-trade
Biological assets other than bearer plants
Trade debts - considered good
Loans and advances - unsecured
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Cash and bank balances
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Authorized share capital
165,000,000 (2023: 165,000,000) Ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital
148,491,213 (2023: 134,992,012) Ordinary
shares of Rs.10 each
Bonus shares issuable
Reserves
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment - net of tax

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term borrowings - secured
Long term lease liabilities - secured
Deferred taxation
Deferred liability on acquisition of shares

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current maturity of long term borrowings - secured
Current portion of lease liabilities - secured
Short term borrowings - secured
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Taxation and levies - net
Accrued mark-up
Unclaimed dividend
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Note

(=)}

1.2

10
11
12
13

14

15
16

17
18
19
20

17
18
21
22

23
24

25

2024
Rupees

2,910,153,056
6,651,363
2,331,203
170,000,000

2023
Rupees
(Restated)

2,505,487,450
8,630,607
1,979,199

3,089,135,622

2,516,097,256

184,079,742 244,793,633
71,967,600 62,489,961
2,275,006,671 2,265,501,193
78,714,119 353,215,227
190,917,666 154,666,449
347,723,137 218,645,543
3,148,408,935 3,299,312,006
6,237,544,557 5,815,409,262
1,650,000,000 1,650.000,000

1,484,912,132

2,610,482,400

1,349,920,120

134,992,012

2,043,448,140
848,827,642 1,011,150,446
4,944,222,174 4,539,510,718
44,204,210 67,316,339
1,990,696 3,978,865
78,740,359 -
37,714,296 -
162,649,561 71,295,204
24,557,949 24,557,949
2,014,011 2,014,011
805,000,000 944,907,362
149,286,840 144,093,985
46,612,869 43,587,953
42,675,747 1,144,738
60,148,620 43,681,582
376,786 615,760
1,130,672,822 1,204,603,340
6,237,544,557 5.815,409.262

C

f\a<

QLM» -

Chief Executive Officer

U kg oy e
/cm%

FRSS

al Officer

Director

57




THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Sales - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Selling expenses

Allowance for expected credit loss

Operating profit
Finance costs
Other income
Other charges

Profit before levies and taxation
Levies - Final Tax

Profit before taxation

Taxation

Profit for the year

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.

U ke Wiy

Note

26
27

28

29
10.1

30
31
32

33

19.1

34

w>% =

2024
Rupees

11,797,754,504
(10,218,713,730)

2023
Rupees
(Restated)

6,365,238,225
(5,512,346,738)

1,579,040,774

852,891,487

(170,636,689) (122,690,485)
(581,598,234) (411,534,376)
(35,179,868) (5,334,011)
(787,414,791) (539,558,872)
791,625,983 313,332,615
(231,486,545) (181,028,297)
154,364,035 675,025,703
(69,982,288) (18,446,465)
(147,104,798) 475,550,941
644,521,185 788,883,556
(161,069,370) (66,689,131)
483,451,815 722,194,425
13,921,489 -
497,373,304 722,194,425
(Restated)
3.35 4.86

Chief Executive Officer

ﬁﬂ/ f Financial Officer

Director
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Note

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) / income:
Items that will not be reclassified to
condensed statement of profit or loss
account in subsequent periods

Items that will be reclassified to condensed
statement of profit or loss account in
subsequent periods

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 16
equipment - net

Deferred tax liability

Total comprehensive income for the year

2024
Rupees

497,373,304

(92,661,848)

2023
Rupees

722,194,425

662,369,936

404,711,456

1,384,564,361

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash generated from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Sale proceed from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Advance against acquisition of shares
Profit received on bank accounts

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term loan repaid - net
Short term loan from related parties repaid
Payment of lease rentals
Dividends paid
Net cash used in financing activities
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Note

35

2024
Rupees

969,739,495

2023
Rupees

47,230,226

(558,810,909)
965,000

(452,000)

(132,285,704)
16,408,936

(116,859,626)

(1,840,429)
(1,354,599)

5,809,395

(674,174,677)

(114,245,259)

(23,112,129)

(3,228,759)

(19,790,712)
(133,987,592)

(2,106,146)

(238,974) (167,865)
(26,579,862) (156,052,315)
268,984,956 (223,067,348)

(726,261,819)

(503,194,471)

(457,276,863)

(726,261,819)

The annexed notes from 1 to 46 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE ORGANIC MEAT COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1.1

1.2

2.1

CORPORATE AND GENERAL INFORMATION

The Organic Meat Company Limited (the "Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on July 14,
2010 as a private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984 (now Companies
Act, 2017), and subsequently it was converted into public limited company on November 08, 2018.
The ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited since
August 03, 2020.

The registered address of the Company is situated at Survey No. 310, Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap,
Karachi, Pakistan. The correspondence address and the offal processing facility is situated at Plot
No. 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi.

The Company's principal activities are slaughtering and sale of halal meat and allied products as
well as feedlot farming of animals.

The Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) with the shareholders of Mohammad
Saeed Mohammad Hussain Limited (MSMHL), an unlisted public company, for acquisition of
100% of its outstanding share capital at a cash, cum deferred price arrangement, of Rs. 170.000
million on May 16, 2023. The terms of the SPA stated that the rights in the shares of MSMHL shall
be transferred to the Company upon payment of Rs. 104.000 million to the existing shareholders of
MSMHL on or before August 15, 2023, and the balance Rs. 66.000 million to be settled in next two
years on or before August 15, 2025. The Company has paid an additional amount of Rs.28.285
million during the reporting period. Further, the Company had entered into two share purchase
supplementary agreements with the shareholders of MSMHL on November 15, 2023 and April 23,
2024, whereby the long stop date to assume the operational, strategic and administrative control of
MSMHL's affairs was initially moved to June 30, 2024 and later to November 30, 2024. The
Company is in the process of completing the regulatory and other formalities to assume
the said control.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017;
and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
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2.2

2.2.1

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant
to the Company and adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and
interpretations of IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or

after)
New or Revised Standard or Interpretation
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 12 'Tncome Taxes' January 1, 2023

Guidance on [AS 12 'Income Taxes' under IFRIC 21, issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) ey, 20

The Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the International Accounting Standard
(IAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements which have been effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any
changes to accounting policy themselves, they impacted the accounting policy information disclosed
in the financial statements.

The amendments require the disclosure of 'material' rather than 'significant' accounting policies. The
amendments also provide guidance on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting
policies, assisting the Company to provide useful entity-specific accounting policy information that
users need to understand other information in the financial statements.

Management reviewed the accounting policies and updates to the information disclosed in "Note 4 -
Material Accounting Policies" in certain instances in line with the amendments and concluded that
all its accounting policies are material for disclosure.
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2.2.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant
but not yet effective and not early adopted by the Company

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be
effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

Effective Date
(Annual periods
beginning on or

after)

Standard or Interpretation

Amendments to [FRS 16 'Leases' January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' January 1, 2024
Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' January 1, 2024
Amendments to [AS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' January 1, 2025
Amendments to I[FRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' January 1, 2026
Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' January 1, 2026

The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and
interpretations to the published standards on the financial statements of the Company.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet
notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standard or Interpretation
IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 1, 2026

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements' January 1, 2027

64




3.1

3.2

33

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the
followings:

a) Certain items of property, plant and equipment that are stated at revalued amount;
b) Biological assets other than bearer plants which are carried at fair value of livestock; and
¢) Derivative financial instruments carried at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani
Rupee which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. The figures have been rounded
off to the nearest Rupee.

Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with approved accounting standards which
requires management to make critical judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of
making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised.

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
estimates and judgment which are significant to the financial statements:

Notes
Useful life of property, plant and equipment 4.1
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5.1
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment 16
Lease term and discount rate for calculation of lease liabilities 4.2
Useful life of intangible assets 43
Impairment of non financial asset 4.4
Valuation of biological assets other than bearer plants 4.5
Provision against trade debts and other receivables 4.6
Net realizable value of Stock-in-trade 4.7
Impairment of financial assets and expected credit loss (ECL) 4.8
Provision 4.11
Provision for taxation 4.13
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4.1

4.1.1

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

4.1.6

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The principal accounting policies applied in the presentation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied throughout the years presented, unless stated
otherwise.

Property, plant and equipment

These are initially recognized and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, if any, except for leasehold land, building on lease hold land and plant and
machinery which are carried at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost. Capital work-in-progress
consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of tangible and intangible assets in
the course of their construction and/or development and installation. Transfers are made to relevant
operating assets category as and when assets are available for use.

Depreciation is charged to income by applying the reducing balance method on an yearly basis
whereby the carrying amount less residual value, if not insignificant, of an asset is depreciated over
its estmated useful life at the rates specified in note 5 to these financial statements. Depreciation on
additions to property, plant and equipment is charged from the month in which an item is acquired
i.e. available for use, while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the item is disposed
off.

Assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if expectations significantly differ
from the previous estimates, at each statement of financial position date.

Increase in carrying amount arising on revaluation of leasehold land, building and plant and
machinery is recognized in equity through other comprehensive income. To the extent that the
increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in the profit or loss, the increase is first
recognized in profit or loss. Decrease that reverses the previous increase of the same asset is first
recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the
asset. All other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. The accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset,
and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as and when incurred.
Renewals and improvements are capitalized and assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that property, plant and
equipment may be impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount of asset is estimated
and accordingly an impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss account for the carrying
amount that exceeds its recoverable amount except for impairment loss on revalued assets, which is
adjusted against related revaluation surplus to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed
the surplus on revaluation of that asset.
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4.1.7 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalized during the period of time that is necessary to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred
and reported in finance costs.

4.2  Right-of-use assets and related liabilities

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right of use
assets are depreciated on a straight line method over the lease term as this method most closely
reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits. The carrying amount of
the right of use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any.

At transition, the Company recognised right of use assets equal to the present value of lease
payments. Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in statement of profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less.

4.3  Intangible assets

These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Amoritzation is
computed using the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets at the rates
disclosed in note 7.1 to these financial statements.

4.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each statement of
financial position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such
indications exist, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated in order to determine the extent of
impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group that
generates cash flows that is largely independent from other assets and group. Impairment losses are
recognized as expense in the profit or loss account.

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Where an impairment loss is recognized, the depreciation charge is adjusted in the future periods to
allocate the asset’s revised carrying amount over its estimated useful life.
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4.5

4.6

4.7

Impaired assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each statement of financial
position date. Reversal of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,
if no impairment losses had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the
profit or loss account.

Biological assets

Biological assets are stated at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs, with any resultant gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss account. Point-of-sale costs include all costs that would be necessary
to sell the assets, excluding costs necessary to get the assets to market. The fair value of livestock is
based on the market price of livestock of similar age, breed and genetic merit. Directly attributable
costs incurred during the period of biological growth to the stage of slaughtering the biological
assets are charged to statement of profit or loss account.

Agricultural activity is defined as a biological transformation of biological assets for sale into
agricultural produce, or into additional biological assets. The Company classifies its livestock of
cattle as biological assets.

The Company recognizes a biological asset, when it controls the asset as a result of past events, and
it is probable that further economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Company, and
the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade receivables are measured on initial recognition at fair value and are subsequently carried at
amortized cost.

Receivables are reviewed on an individual basis to determine whether any amount is unrecoverable
and a specific provision is made. The provision for doubtful debt is estimated amount of receivable
that is not expected to be paid. Debts known to be uncollectable are written-off as bad debt and

charged to the statement of profit or loss immediately.

In assessing the recovery of receivables, Company consider the customer credit history and
historical recovery performance and trend.

Stock-in-trade

These are valued at the lower of weighted average cost and net realizable values.
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4.8

Cost is determined as follows:

- Raw materials are measured at weighted average purchase cost and directly
attributable expenses incurred in bringing them to their existing location and

- Work-in-process and finished goods are valued at weighted average cost of raw
materials and other related conversion expenses.

- Packing material and feed stock are valued at cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. In the case of processed stock and work-in-
process, cost includes a share of overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Impairment of financial assets and expected credit losses (ECL)

IFRS 9’s impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to recognize expected
credit losses — the ‘expected credit loss (ECL) model’. The Company considers a broader range of
information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affects the expected collectability of
the future cash flows of the instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between.

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk (‘Stage-1°);

- financial instruments that have deteriorated significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low (‘Stage-2’).;

- financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date
(‘Stage-3°).

‘12-month expected credit losses’ are recognized for the first category while ‘lifetime expected
credit losses’ are recognized for the second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

The expected loss rates are based on the Company’s historical experience of credit losses.
ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the

contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive. The shortfall is then discounted
at an approximation to the assets’ original effective interest rate.
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The Company has elected to measure loss allowances for trade debts using IFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The Company has established a
provision matrix that is based on the Company's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. When determining
whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit
assessment including forward-looking information.

The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables
to assess amount of loss allowance required on an annual basis.

4.9 Employees benefits

The Company has discontinued its unapproved contributory provident fund scheme, on the premise
that its not statutorily liable to maintain the same being a agricultural producer.

4.10 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at their amortized cost, which approximates the
fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not
invoiced to the Company.

4.11 Provisions

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.

4.12 Revenue from contract with customers

4.12.1 Sale of goods
The Company is in the business of processing and sale of meat and allied products. Revenue from
customers is recognized when control of goods is transferred to the customers and thereby the
performance obligations are satisfied, at the amount that reflects the consideration that the Company

is entitled to receive in exchange of goods (i.e. fair value of consideration received or receivable net
of returns, taxes and discount).
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Performance obligations are satisfied based on the shipping terms with customers in case of export
sales, usually on shipment/delivery of the goods. In case of other sales, control of the goods is
satisfied at a point in time when the goods are dispatched to the customers.

4.12.2 Rendering of services

Revenue from rendering of services include transportation services for third parties and slaughtering
fee. Revenue is recognized after the service is complete.

4.12.3 Interest / Mark-up income

4.13

4.14

Interest / mark-up income is recorded on accrual basis.
Taxation
Current

The tax expense for the year comprises current tax. Tax is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan has issued 'TAS 12' Application Guidance on
Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes, whereby the Company has designated the amount

calculated as tax on gross amount of revenue or other basis as a levy within the scope of IFRIC
21/1AS 37.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised, using the statement of financial position liability method, on all
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amount. Deferred tax is calculated using the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
differences reverse based on the tax rates that have been enacted at the statement of financial
position date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, whereas deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available against which the asset can be utilised.
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4.15 Levy

The levies are accounted for in accordance with the requirement of IFRIC - 21. Minimum tax, final
tax and super tax which are not based on taxable profits are recognized as a levy in the statement of
profit and loss and other comprehensive income. Any excess of expected income tax paid or payable
for the year under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 over the amount designated as a levy is
recognized as current income tax expense in the statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income.

4.16 Change in accounting policy

Previously, the current and prior tax expense calculated as per the applicable taxation laws was
recorded as an income tax expense. During the current financial year, the Institute of Chartered
Accountant of Pakistan (ICAP) has issued the guidance for 'Accounting of Minimum and Final
Taxes' through circular No. 7/2024 dated May 15, 2024.

Following the prescribed guidelines, the Company has revised its accounting policy for accounting
of final taxes, whereby the amount calculated as tax on gross amount of revenue or other basis has
been reported as a levy within the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37. This change in accounting policy has
been accounted for retrospectively as referred under International Accounting Standard - 8
'Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors', and the comparative financial
statements have been restated.

A iousl
s previously  Amount of As restated

reported restatement
Rupees
Year ended June 30, 2023
Effect on statement of financial position
Taxation - net 1,144,738 (1,144,738) -
Taxation and levies - net - 1,144,738 1,144,738
Effect on statement of profit or loss
Levies - Final Tax - (66,689,131) (66,689,131)
Taxation (66,689,131) 66,689,131 -

The changes have been applied retrospectively for the year ended June 30 2023, resulting in
reclassifications in the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and statement of
cash flows . The changes have no impact on statement of other comprehensive income and
statement of changes in equity. Further, there is no impact on the earnings per share for the current
year and prior year due to the change.
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4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances with banks. For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of short term borrowings which
are repayable on demand or in the short term and form an integral part of Company’s cash
management.

Earnings per share

The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharcholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Commitments

Commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred are disclosed in the financial
statements at committed amounts. Commitments for letters of credit and letters of guarantee
denominated in foreign currencies are expressed in Rupee terms at the committed amounts.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current /
non-current classification.

An asset is current when it is:

- expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

- held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- cash or cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- it is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

- it is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

- it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

- there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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4.21

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

Foreign currency translations

The foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions. The closing balance of non-monetary items is included
at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction and monetary items are translated using
the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains or losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in statement of profit or loss
with other income/other operating expenses.

Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a type off financial instrument typically used to manage the interest rate and foreign
exchange risk, that the Company faces due to business operations. The type of derivative used is
forward contract, which enables the Company to sell foreign currency to set out rate at future date.
Derivative financial instruments are recognized at fair value on the time the contract are agreed and
are re-measured on a periodic basis.

Dividends and appropriations to reserves

Dividends and appropriations to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports issued to the chief
operating decision-maker. The Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the ‘chief operating
decision-maker’, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. On the basis of its internal reporting structure, the Company considers itself to
be a single reportable segment.

Note 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating assets - at net book value 5.1 2,676,167,089 2,498,731,811
Capital work-in-progress - at cost 5.2 233,985,967 6,755,639

2,910,153,056 2,505,487,450
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5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Note
Capital work-in-progress (CWIP)

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions during the year

Transfers during the year 54
Balance at the end of the year

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
6,755,639 62,924,600
278,614,943 59,344,321
(51,384,615) (115,513,282)
233,985,967 6,755,639

This capital work-in-progress at June 30, 2024 is subsequently transferred to property, plant and

equipment and is a non adjusting event.
Transfers from CWIP during the year are as follows:

Factory building on leasehold land
Plant and machinery

Allocation of depreciation

Cost of sales
Administrative expense

15,384,615 102,963,666
36,000,000 12,549,616
51,384,615 115,513,282
150,877,977 127,247,166
4,512,040 5,519,393
155,390,017 132,766,559

The Company allocates depreciation expense related to all of its core assets used in the production
process to cost of sales, while the depreciation on the remaining assets is charged to the

administrative expenses.

The Company had last revalued its land, building and plant and machinery on March 31, 2023. The
revaluation exercise was carried out by Sipra and Company (Private) Limited, an independent
valuer. The valuer is listed on the approved panel of valuers of Pakistan Banks' Association and
Leasing Association of Pakistan. The land was revalued on the basis of current market price
whereas buildings and plant and machinery were revalued using the Asset Based Valuation Method.
The valuation exercise resulted in a net surplus of Rs.662.37 million as on the date of revaluation.
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5.8

59

5.10

Fair value hierarchy

Details of the Company's land, building and plant and machinery , and information about the fair
value hierarchy of latest revaluation is as follows:

Fair values as at

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 March 31, 2024
Rupees
Factory Land - Leasehold - - 566,744,900 566,744,900
Factory building on leasehold land - - 1,086,987,800 1,086,987,800
Plant and machinery - - 852,720,000 852,720,000
- - 2,506,452,700 2,506,452,700

At the time of revaluation, forced sale value of the revalued assets were as follows:

Description of revalued asset Rupees

Factory land 453,395,920
Building 815,240,850
Plant and machinery 596,904,000

1,865,540,770

Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as
follows:

Location Immovable Property Total Area

Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap Karachi *
Plot # 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial
Area, Karachi

Factory premises 13.215 Acres

Offal processing facility 1,067 Sq. Yard

* The area of the manufacturing facility and fattening farm is included in the factory premises.

Had the operating fixed assets been recognized under the 'Cost Model', the carrying amount of such
revalued assets would have been as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Factory Land - Leasehold 247,776,612 247,776,612
Factory building on leasehold land 379,557,955 433,660,704
Plant and machinery 744,657,682 411,512,492
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6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

Net book value at beginning of the year
Additions during the year

Depreciation expense for the year

Net book value at end of the year

Note

6.2

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
8,630,607 3,837,215
- 6,166,735
(1,979,244) (1,373,343)
6,651,363 8,630,607

The Company has lease contracts related to motor vehicles with useful lives between 3 years and 5
years. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased
assets. Generally, the Company is restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets.

Depreciation expense related to right-of-use assets has been charged to ‘administrative expense’ in

the statement of profit or loss.
INTANGIBLE ASSET

Intangible assets - at net book value
Intangible assets - work-in-progress

Computer Software

Cost
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions / transfer during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Accumulated amortization
Balance at the beginning of the year
Charge for the year
Balance at the end of the year

Written down value

Amortization rate (%)

7.1

50,004 150,000
2,281,199 1,829,199
2,331,203 1,979,199

500,000 500,000
500,000 500,000
(350,000) (250,000)
(99,996) (100,000)
(449,996) (350,000)
50,004 150,000

20% 20%

Amortization costs of intangible assets have been allocated fully to administrative expenses.
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8.

9.

9.1

9.2

9.3

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw Material 6,901,060 -
Finished goods 157,047,063 240,223,889
Packing material 14,993,385 2,156,455
Animal feed 5,138,234 2,413,289
184,079,742 244,793,633

BIOLOGICAL ASSETS OTHER THAN BEARER PLANTS

Livestock - cattle

Carrying amount at the beginning of year 62,489,961 12,360,222
Additions during the year 460,818,637 552,860,259
Decrease due to consumption/sales (556,490,039) (550,826,481)
Gains arising from changes in fair value 105,149,041 48,095,961
Carrying amount at the end of the year 71,967,600 62,489,961

As at June 30, 2024, the livestock comprised 551 (2023: 393) cattle heads. During the year, the
Company has slaughtered 4,438 cattle heads from its stock of biological assets.

The Company lost one animal from its biological assets inventory due to it escaping the feedlot
farm. This loss of Rs.0.081 million is accounted for in the consumption cost of biological assets
slaughtered during the year.

Fair value hierarchy

Details of the biological assets, and information about the fair value hierarchy of latest revaluation,
which has been based on observable market sales data, using market comparison technique under
which the price is based on the market price of livestock of similar age, weight and market values, is
as follows:

Livestock - Cattle Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
Rupees

June 30, 2024 - 71,967,600 - 71,967,600

June 30, 2023 - 62,489,961 - 62,489,961
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10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED GOOD

Unsecured and Considered good
- Trade debts - Export
- Trade debts - Local

Considered doubtful

Trade receivables - gross

Less: Provision against doubtful debt
Trade receivables - net

Movement in provision against doubtful debts

Balance at the beginning of the year
Allowance for doubtful debts

- expected credit loss

Balance at the end of the year

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees

2,046,432,181 2,181,637,994
228,574,490 83,863,199
2,275,006,671 2,265,501,193
239,254,351 204,074,483
2,514,261,022 2,469,575,676

10.1 (239,254,351) (204,074,483)
2,275,006,671 2,265,501,193
204,074,483 198,740,472
10.5 & 10.6 35,179,868 5,334,011
239,254,351 204,074,483

The maximum aggregate amount of trade receivables from related parties at the end of any month
during the year was Rs.6.184 million (2023: Nil).

The aging of export and local receivable balances as at the date of statement of financial position is

as follows:

Aging profile

Not yet due
1-30 days
31-60 days
61-120 days
121-180 days
181-360 days
Above 1 year

Impaired and provided for
Trade debtors - net of provision

2024 2023
Export Local Export Local
Rupees Rupees

1,626,361,846 59,450,020 1,212,440,307 -
202,736,657 12,792,178 493,313,804 9,273,338
234,062,796 2,760,000 375,790,106 13,910,640
54,119,405 28,307,498 132,853,125 60,662,602

- 113,235,000 - -

- 11,833,175 - 16,619
168,585,828 16,619 171,315,135 -
2,285,866,532 228,394,490 2,385,712,477 83,863,199
(214,992,144) (24,262,207) (203,919,923) (154,560)
2,070,874,388 204,132,283 2,181,792,554 83,708,639

These receivables are being adjusted from the realization of the proceeds on first in first out basis as
payments from customers are received periodically. The sales are made to the customers with pre-set
credit terms and these trade debts are unsecured.

The (reversal) / impairment charged against the export receivables for the year is as follows:
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10.6

10.7

11.

111

11.2

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Less than one year 10,763,101 5,488,571
More than one year - -
10,763,101 5,488,571

The impairment / (reversal) charged against the local receivables for the year is as follows:

Less than one year 24,416,767 (154,560)
More than one year - -

24,416,767 (154,560)

Due to the short term nature of the trade debts, their carrying amount is considered to be the same as
their fair value.

LOANS AND ADVANCES - UNSECURED

Considered good, non-interest bearing

Loans to employees 10,902,572 3,240,868
Advances - considered good
Suppliers 11.1 41,352,569 345,773,539
Against fixed assets 25,850,982 2,566,513
Against expenses 607,996 1,634,307
78,714,119 353,215,227
Advances to suppliers
Considered good 11.2 41,352,569 345,773,539
Considered doubtful 27,152,270 27,152,270
Advance to suppliers - gross 68,504,839 372,925,809
Less: Provision against doubtful advances
Balance at the beginning of the year 27,152,270 27,152,270
Charge for the year - -
Balance at the end of the year 27,152,270 27,152,270
41,352,569 345,773,539

This represents the amount paid to suppliers against purchase of meat, offal and animals etc., which
is adjustable against future purchases.
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12.

12.1

12.1.1

12.2

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Rebate receivable - net
Sales tax refundable
Prepaid insurance
Other receivables
Security deposit

Rebate receivable - net of provision

Balance at the beginning of the year
Re-measurement gain / (loss) on financial asset
at amortized cost

Balance at the end of the year

Note

12.1
12.2

12.3

12.1.1

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
148,829,501 121,877,554

27,729,436 22,916,906

1,578,541 1,059,354
9,181,430 7,120,457
3,598,758 1,692,178
190,917,666 154,666,449
121,877,554 136,382,162

26,951,947 (14,504,608)

148,829,501 121,877,554

This represents an amount receivable against drawback of local taxes and levies collected from
exporters of eligible products, vide S.R.O. No. 711(1)/2018 issued by the Ministry of Commerce &
Textile, Commerce Division. The Company is engaged in the export of processed meat, which is an
eligible product for the purpose of drawback under the aforementioned circular, and stands expired
at June 30, 2021. The new scheme for financial year 2022 and onwards has not been announced by
the Ministry of Commerce, and therefore has not been accounted for in these financial statements.
On prudent basis, The Company has deferred the recognition of remeasurement gain on rebate

receivable till realization.
Sales tax refundable

Balance at the beginning of the year
Input tax paid during the year
Refund from tax authorities
Balance at the end of the year

22,916,906 11,530,734
14,133,159 15,286,021
(9,320,629) (3,899,849)
27,729,436 22,916,906
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12.3 This includes an amount of Rs.7.35 million, held as lien by banks on overdue export proceeds. The
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) had, vide its FE Circular No.02 of 2023 dated March 31, 2023,
directed the banks dealing with export proceeds to hold under lien partial remittance after
conversion of proceeds in Pak Rupees based on the timing delays from maximum allowable time
limits, that is 21 days in case of clean (unsecured) export sales and time based delays (number of
days overdue) in case of secured export sales against letter of credits (due acceptance period expiry).
The rates of lien withheld ranged from 3% to 9% of the net proceeds realised.

The State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) has established a process for refunds of these lien marked funds
and following that process, the Company has applied for and received refunds out of the amount

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 195,762 1,208,313
Balances with banks
In local currency:
- Current accounts 13.1 69,722,414 141,290,837
- Saving accounts 13.2 277,428,175 75,530,633
- Dividend accounts 376,786 615,760
347,527,375 217,437,230
347,723,137 218,645,543
13.1 The bank balances maintained under current accounts do not carry any mark-up.
13.2 The rates of markup on savings accounts during the year ranged from 20.50% to 22.50% per anum
(2023: 12.25% to 18.85% per anum).
14. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL
2024 2023 2024 2023
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
61,817,777 61,817,777 - Fully paid in cash 618,177,770 618,177,770
86,673,436 73,174,235 - Issued as bonus shares 866,734,362 731,742,350
148,491,213 134,992,012 1,484,912,132 1,349,920,120
14.1 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding
2024 2023 2024 2023
Number of shares Rupees Rupees

marked under lien, subsequent to the date of statement of financial position.

Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

134,992,012 122,999,555 At the beginning of the year 1,349,920,120 1,229,995,550
Issued during the year as fully paid

13,499,201 11,992,457 bonus shares 134,992,012 119,924,570

148,491,213 134,992,012 1,484,912,132 1,349,920,120
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14.2

143

15.

15.1

16.

16.1

These fully paid ordinary shares of the Company carry one vote per share and an equal right of
entitlement to dividends.

Ordinary shares of the Company held by related parties as at the year end are as follows:

2024 2023
Note Number of shares
Chief Executive Officer 67,009,036 61,476,180
Directors 13,971,593 13,509,405
80,980,629 74,985,585
RESERVES
Capital
Share premium 15.1 377,152,913 377,152,913
Revenue
Un-appropriated profits 2,233,329,487 1,666,295,227

2,610,482,400 2,043,448,140

The share premium reserve can only be utilised by the Company for the purposes specified under
section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,011,150,446 409,990,050
Additions during the year - 662,369,936
Less: Transferred to unappropriated profit on account
of incremental depreciation for the year - net (69,660,956) (61,209,540)
Less: Deferred tax on revaluation surplus (92,661,848) -
Balance at the end of the year 16.1 848,827,642 1,011,150,446

The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's shareholders.
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17.

17.1

17.2

17.3

18.

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
Samba Bank Limited 17.1 21,084,858 31,370,786
Al-Baraka Bank Limited 17.2 47,677,301 60,503,502
Financial institutions - secured 68,762,159 91,874,288
Less: Current maturity long term borrowings (24,557,949) (24,557,949)
Non-current portion of long-term borrowing 44,204,210 67,316,339

The Company has obtained State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) Temporary Economic Refinance
Facility for the purpose of capital expenditure, which carries mark-up at SBP's prescribed rate of 1%
plus bank's spread of 4% for a tenor of five years. The facility is secured by way of first equitable
mortgage over land and building amounting Rs.153 million and specific charge over plant and
machinery amounting Rs.114 million respectively, located at Korangi offal processing facility.

The Company has obtained long term loan financing under Diminishing Musharka, for the purposes
of capital expenditure which is secured by way of first exclusive charge over specific fixed assets
which comprise of land and fattening farm sheds, located at Gadap factory, amounting Rs. 145.83
million, and personal guarantees of directors. It carries mark-up at the rate of one-year KIBOR plus
2.5%. The loan has a tenor of five years including a grace period of one year, with 48 equal
quarterly principal installments.

Following are the changes in the long term finances for which cashflows have been classified as
financing activities in the statement of cashflows:

Opening balance at the beginning of the year 91,874,288 91,874,288
Less: Long term loans repaid (23,112,129) -
Closing balance at the end of the year 68,762,159 91,874,288
LEASE LIABILITIES
Balance at the beginning of the year 5,992,876 2,968,201
Additions / net transfers during the year 194,720 4,441,580
Mark-up accrued 1,240,590 916,365
Repaid / adjusted during the year (3,423,479) (2,333,270)
Balance at the end of the year 4,004,707 5,992,876
Current portion of lease liabilities (2,014,011) (2,014,011)
Non-current portion of lease liabilities 1,990,696 3,978,865
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18.1

19.

19.1

20.

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
The expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease
payment is as follows:
Less than 1 year 2,014,011 2,014,011
Between 1 and 5 years 1,990,696 3,978,865
Over 5 years - -
4,004,707 5,992,876
DEFERRED TAXATION
Deferred taxation comprises of:
Taxable temporary differences:
Surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 92,661,848 -
Accelerated tax depreciation allowance 29,645,344 -
Right-of-use assets 2,461,004 -
Gains arising from changes in fair value on
biological assets 41,963,419 -
Unrealised exchange gains on trade debtors 2,656,730 -
Remeasurement gain on rebate receivable 9,620,000 -
Gross deferred tax liabilities 179,008,345 -
Deductible temporary differences:
Provision against doubtful debt 88,739,906 -
Provision against doubtful advances 10,046,339 -
Lease liabilities 1,481,741 -
100,267,986
78,740,359 -

Balance at the beginning of the year
Deferred tax income to profit or loss

(13,921,489)
92,661,348

Deferred tax expense to other comprehensive income

Balance at the end of the year 78,740,359 -

Till tax year 2024, income from export business was taxable under Final Tax Regime (FTR).
Consequent to promulgation of Finance Act, 2025, income from export business is chargeable to
normal tax regime (NTR) subject to minimum tax effective from July 1, 2024.

Due to the change in tax regime from FTR to NTR has enacted as of June 30, 2024, the Company
recorded deferred taxation on temporary differences existing on June 30, 2024 between tax and
accounting bases of assets and liabilities.

DEFERRED LIABILITY ON ACQUISITION OF SHARES
The amounts represent deferred consideration for acquisition of shares of Mohammad Saeed

Mohammad Hussain Limited (MSMHL) which is to be settled on or before August 15 2025 as per
the share purchase agreement between the Company and share holders of MSMHL.
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20.1 This balance has been carried at cost as the effect of carrying this balance at amortized cost is not

considered to be material.

21. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

Financial Institutions

21.1 Financial Institutions

HBL Bank Limited
Samba Bank Limited
Faysal bank Limited
Al-Baraka Bank Limited
Soneri bank Limited
National Bank of Pakistan

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
805,000,000 944,907,362
125,000,000 125,000,000
100,000,000 139,907,362
100,000,000 100,000,000
180,000,000 180,000,000
100,000,000 100,000,000
200,000,000 300,000,000
805,000,000 944,907,362

21.2 Details of borrowings from financial institutions are as follows:

Name of Institution

Facility Name

2024

2023 Rate Purpose

Security

HBL Bank Limited Running finance

Export refinance facility

Samba Bank Limited Running finance
Short term loan
Finance against packing

credit

Faysal Bank Limited Salam - Export Refinance

facility

(Rs. In million) %

70
55

100

70 3MK+ 2% Working Capital
55 3MK+ 2% Working Capital

40 1IMK + 1.75% Working Capital
40 IMK + 1.75% Working Capital
60 IMK + 1.50% Working Capital

100 3MK+ 2%  Working capital

Joint Pari Passu hypothecation charge of
Rs.156 million registered with SECP over
existing and future stocks and receivables with
25% margin, lien on export documents and
proceeds with 10% margin, Joint Pari Passu
Hypothecation charge over Plant and
Machinery to the extent of Rs. 143 million.
Joint Pari Passu charge over land and Building
to the extent of Rs. 57 million and personal
guarantees of all directors having 10% or more
shareholding.

First exclusive charge over specific fixed
assets which include land and building,
specific plant and machinery and other
machinery and equipment amounting to Rs.
153 million and Rs. 114 million respectively,
along with personal guarantees of directors
and personal guarantees of all directors having
10% or more shareholding. Furthermore, the
facilities carry a ranking charge of Rs. 100
million over current assets.

First Joint Pari Passu charge over land and
Building to the extent of Rs. 28.5 million, First
Pari Passu hypothecation charge over its Plant
and machinery up to Rs. 104.84 million, First
Pari Passu Hypothecation charge over current
asset of the Company amounting to Rs. 125
million and by way of personal guarantees of
all the directors of the Company having 10%
or more shareholding.
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2202

22.1

22.2

Name of Institution Facility Name 2024 2023 Rate Purpose Security

(Rs. In million) %

Al-Baraka Bank Limited Istisna 100 100 6MK + 2%  Working capital Joint Pari Passu charge by way of equitable
Murabahah 80 80 O6MK+2% Working Capital mortgage over land and buildings up to the
(Purchase of extent of Rs. 57 million, joint pari passu
fattening animals) charge by way of hypothecation charge over
plant and machinery up to the extent of Rs.
143 million and on current assets to the extent
of Rs. 225 million and by way of personal
guarantees of two directors of the Company.

Soneri Bank Limited Murabahah 100 100 6MK+ 2%  Working capital First Joint Pari Passu charge over the
Company's fixed assets , which includes land
and buildings up to the extent of Rs. 28.5
million, plant and machinery up to the extent
of Rs. 71.5 million, and on current assets to
the extent of Rs. 125 million and by way of
personal guarantees of directors of the
Company having 10% or more sharecholding.

National Bank of Running finance 200 300 6MK + 1.5% Working capital First Joint Pari Passu charge over the

Pakistan Company's fixed assets , which includes land
and buildings up to the extent of Rs.100
million, plant and machinery up to the extent
of Rs.300 million, and on current assets to the
extent of Rs.400 million and by way of
personal guarantees of directors of the
Company having 10% or more shareholding.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade creditors 18,825,585 19,865,214
Workers' profit participation fund payable 22.1 80,454,534 80,454,534
Workers' welfare fund payable 22.1 12,445,544 12,445,544
Advances from customers - 12,834,000
Payable to contractors 6,857,133 2,028,808
Salaries, benefits and allowances payable 28,809,804 12,425,264
Staff provident fund 22.2 - 2,096,941
Audit fee payable 1,894,240 1,943,680

149,286,840 144,093,985

The Company has provided for the Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF) and Workers'
Welfare Fund (WWF) liability till December 31, 2022. The Company, effective January 1, 2023,
has ceased to provide for the provisioning of these statutory obligations based on the premise that as
an agricultural producer the provisions of the Sindh Workers Welfare Fund Act, 2021 and the Sindh
Companies Profits (Workers' Participation) Act, 2015 do not apply to it.

Had the Company continued providing for the obligations under the said Acts, the provision for the
obligations in aggregate would have been higher by Rs.37.27 million and consequently, the net
profit of the Company before tax would have been lower by the same amount.

The Company has ceased its unapproved contributory provident fund scheme during the year based
on the premise that as an agricultural producer, the provisions of The Sindh Terms of Employment
(Standing Orders) Act, 2015. are not applicable to the Company.
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2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
23. ACCRUED MARK-UP
On long-term borrowing - secured 1,029,971 406,370
On short-term borrowing - secured 59,118,649 43,275,212
60,148,620 43,681,582
24. UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND
This represents part of final dividend for the year ended June 30, 2020, which remained unpaid to
the shareholders, who have not provided valid documentation to claim dividend.
25. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
25.1 Contingencies
There Company has received notice for recovery of Super Tax under section 4C of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 for the tax year 2022. The Company has been granted a stay order on recovery
proceedings up to 50% of the Super Tax amount by the Sindh High Court, and has filed an
application for the adjustments of the demand raised against outstanding tax refunds with the
Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) (June 30, 2023: Nil).(June 30, 2023: Nil).
The Company has further provided for Rs.34.04 million as Super tax liability payable for the tax
year 2024 but is in the process of filing an injunction against this demand as well as the demand for
tax year 2023 based on the Islamabad High Court's recent judgement which has declared provisions
of Super tax under section 4C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 as ultra vires and not applicable
to industries and taxpayers falling under Final Tax Regime (FTR). The management is confident
that based on the judgement of the superior courts in this matter, the liability of Super tax shall
not crystallize.
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
25.2 Commitments
25.2.1 Commitments against capital expenditure
Commitments in respect of letter of
credits and purchase order for capital 60,389,498 1,813,605
26. SALES-NET
Export sales 26.1 11,288,060,215 6,101,570,801
Local and other sales 26.2 509,694,289 263,667,424

11,797,754,504 6,365,238,225
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26.1 The Company sells its product to many customers. Out of these, three (2023: One) of the Company's
customers contributed towards 52.42% (2023: 21.48%) of the total revenue during the year.

26.2 This includes sales of biological assets (other than bearer plants), amounting to Rs.20.32 million
(2023: Rs.5.06 million).

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
27. COST OF SALES
Finished goods at the beginning of the year 240,223,889 111,327,730
Cost of goods available for sale 27.1 10,135,536,904 5,641,242,897
Finished goods at the end of the year (157,047,063) (240,223,889)

10,218,713,730 5,512,346,738

27.1 Cost of goods available for sale

Raw material and livestock purchased and consumed 9,041,166,190 5,146,507,299
Conversion Cost

Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment 5.5 150,877,977 127,247,166
Salaries, wages and other benefits 145,143,662 72,807,649
Animal feed and other consumables 27.2 81,362,964 22,476,321
Fuel and power 231,427,991 95,712,159
Cutting and deboning 135,776,075 54,197,671
Packing materials consumed 27.3 236,466,529 61,569,772
Repairs and maintenance 81,614,561 46,245,133
Transportation 9,699,433 3,287,076
Insurance 4,125,074 4,604,344
Printing and stationary 2,571,245 2,306,483
Janitorial expense 13,999,303 3,195,259
Communication expense 1,305,900 1,086,565
1,094,370,714 494,735,598

10,135,536,904 5,641,242,897

27.2 Animal feed and other consumables

Opening stock 2,413,289 1,525,971
Purchases of animal feed 84,087,909 23,363,639
Closing stock (5,138,234) (2,413,289)
Animal feed consumed 81,362,964 22,476,321

27.3 Packing materials consumed

Opening stock 2,156,455 3,751,658
Purchases of packing material 249,303,459 59,974,569
Closing stock (14,993,385) (2,156,455)
Packing material consumed 236,466,529 61,569,772
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28.

28.1 Auditor's remuneration

29.

30.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, benefits and other allowances
Fee and subscription

Food and entertainment

Legal and professional

Depreciation

Repair and maintenance

Travelling
Insurances

Security services

Depreciation on right of use assets
Printing and stationery

Vehicle running and maintenances
Amortization expense

Staff trainings

Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee

Half yearly review

Certifications

Code of corporate governance
Out of pocket expenses

SELLING EXPENSES

Clearing and forwarding charges
Quarantine charges

Export duties

Business development

FINANCE COSTS

On borrowings

On lease
Bank charges

Re-measurement loss on financial assets
carried at amortized cost

Note

5.5

7.1

28.1

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
88,429,726 62,432,012
22,530,670 28,072,821
24,053,156 7,087,793
1,996,178 6,000,000
4,512,040 5,519,393
969,910 2,212,322
2,213,398 2,078,136
2,986,538 2,029,910
3,778,303 1,668,045
1,979,244 1,373,343
1,691,642 926,181
12,642,824 414,265
99,996 100,000
- 46,000
2,753,064 2,730,264
170,636,689 122,690,485
1,580,000 1,580,000
600,000 600,000
130,000 130,000
128,000 128,000
315,064 292,264
2,753,064 2,730,264
494,318,062 365,744,670
46,836,798 24,023,850
39,902,754 21,619,513
540,620 146,343
581,598,234 411,534,376
214,111,589 156,451,415
1,240,590 916,365
16,134,366 9,155,908
- 14,504,609
231,486,545 181,028,297
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31.

32.

32.1

322

32.2.1

33.

33.1.

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Re-measurement gain on financial assets
carried at amortized cost 26,951,947 -
Exchange gain / (loss) 32.1 - 616,613,954
Profit on pls account 18,235,787 5,809,395
45,187,734 622,423,349
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on biological assets-net 105,149,041 48,095,961
Other income 1,244,714 27,200
Reversal of liabilities 22.2 - 4,229,193
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 2,782,546 250,000
109,176,301 52,602,354
154,364,035 675,025,703
OTHER CHARGES
Exchange loss 32.1 67,347,018 -
Donation and charity 322 2,635,270 2,495,414
Other expenses - 2,994,500
Worker' profit participation fund - 10,841,249
Worker's welfare fund - 2,115,302
69,982,288 18,446,465
Exchange (Loss) / Gain
Realized (loss) / gain (74,527,368) 599,954,596
Unrealized gain 7,180,350 16,659,358
(67,347,018) 616,613,954

This includes donations paid to Apna Dastarkhuwan and Madarsa Darul Uloom Islamia amounting
to Rs. 1.2 million (2023: Rs. 0.40 million) and Rs. 1.17 million (2023: Rs. 1.47 million)

respectively.

None of the directors or their spouse have any interest in the donee.

2024
Rupees
LEVIES - FINAL TAX
Income tax levy under IFRIC 21/IAS 37 33.1 161,069,370

2023
Rupees

(Restated)

66,689,131

This represents final taxes paid under Section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (ITO, 2001),

representing levy in terms of requirement of IFRIC21/IAS 37.
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33.2

34.

34.1

342

35s.

36.

Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The Company discharges its tax liability as full and final discharge of liability under Section 154 of
the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Therefore, reconciliation for tax charge with respect to accounting

profit is not disclosed.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the year attributable to the

ordinary shareholders Rupees
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding during the year Number
Basic and diluted earnings per share Rupees

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
497,373,304 722,194,425
148,491,213 148,491,213

Restated
3.35 4.86
Restated

During the year, 10% bonus shares were issued (i.e. 13,499,201 shares) by the Company.
Accordingly, the weighted average number of ordinary shares for the corresponding year (i.e. Year

2023) have been re-stated.

There is no dilutive effect on the earnings per share of the Company, as it does not have any

convertible instruments as at June 30, 2024 and 2023.
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Short term borrowings -
financial institutions 21
Cash and bank balances 13

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before levies and taxation
Adjustment for non-cash items
Depreciation on property,

plant and equipment 5.5
Depreciation on right of use assets 6
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 31
Amortization expense 7.1
Provision against trade debtors 10.1
Finance costs 30
Reversal of liabilities 31
Unrealised exchange gain on

trade debtors 32.1

(805,000,000) (944,907,362)
347,723,137 218,645,543
(457,276,863) (726,261,819)
644,521,185 788,883,556
155,390,017 132,766,559

1,979,244 1,373,343
(1,244,714) -
99,996 100,000
35,179,868 5,334,011
231,486,545 181,028,297
- (4,229,193)
(7,180,350) (16,659,358)
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37.

37.1

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Un-realized gain on biological assets 31 (21,379,694) (48,095,961)
Profit on savings account 31 (18,235,787) (5,809,395)
Provision for Worker's
Profit Participation Fund 32 - (10,841,249)
Provision for Worker's Welfare Fund 32 - (2,115,302)

1,020,616,310 1,021,735,308
Working capital changes

Stock-in-trade 60,713,891 (128,188,274)
Biological assets 11,902,055 (2,033,778)
Trade debts (37,229,406) (656,118,879)

Loans and advances 274,501,108 32,217,842
Deposits and prepayments and other receivables (34,424,366) (18,972,430)

Trade and other payables 5,192,855 10,812,339
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,024,916 (1,891,495)
283,681,053 (764,174,675)

Cash generated from operating activities 1,304,297,363 257,560,633
Tax and levies paid (119,538,361) (65,544,393)
Finance costs paid (215,019,507) (144,786,014)

Net cash generated from operating activities 969,739,495 47,230,226

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Risk management policies

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of shareholders’ value.
Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of
risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price risk) arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

The Board of Directors / Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is
assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and adhoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit
Committee.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimize risk.
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37.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter
parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other receivables. The
Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance
with the internal guidelines and regulatory requirements.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposures. The
accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed to perform as
contracted. The maximum exposure to credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of financial assets
amounting to Rs.2.82 billion (2023: Rs.2.63 billion).

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Trade debts 2,275,006,671 2,265,501,193
Loans to employees 10,902,572 3,240,868
Duty drawback 148,829,501 121,877,554
Sales tax refundable 27,729,436 22,916,906
Cash and bank balances 347,723,137 218,645,543

2,810,191,317 2,632,182,064

The Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis at various level. The
Company believes that it is not exposed to any major credit risk as it operates in an essential
commodity industry, and its customer are organizations and individuals with good credit history.

The credit quality of the bank balances can be assessed with reference to the recent external credit
ratings assigned to these banks where such balances are maintained. The long-term credit ratings of

such banks are categorized below:

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
AAA 57,561,938 15,080,964
AA+ 237,512,405 112,292,185
AA 22,204,251 1,759,472
A+ 11,170,398 60,136,641
A 131,099 150,002
AA- 17,880,853 27,956,134
A- 1,004,599 -
Other 61,832 61,832

347,527,375 217,437,230
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37.3

37.4

a)

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business
activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual
obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other conditions. The
Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stress conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Company's reputation. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
interest payments, if any:

The Company's financial liabilities have contractual maturities as summarised below:

Carrying Less than 6
amount months 6 to 12 months 1 to 5 years
Rupees
As at June 30,2024
Long term borrowings -
secured 68,762,159 - 24,557,949 44,204,210
Long term lease liability 4,004,707 - 2,014,011 1,990,696
Short term borrowings -
secured 805,000,000 805,000,000 - -
Trade and other payables 149,286,840 56,386,762 92,900,078 -
Accrued expenses and
other liabilities 46,612,869 46,612,869 - -
Accrued markup 60,148,620 60,148,620 - -
Unclaimed dividend 376,786 376,786 - -
1,134,191,981 968,525,037 119,472,038 46,194,906
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market price, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments.
The Company is not exposed to price risk.

Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transacton in
foreign currencies. As at June 30, 2024, financial assets include Rs.2.046 billion (2023: Rs.2.18
billion), and financial liabilites include no amounts (2023: Nil), which are subject to foreign
currency risk. The Company manages its foreign currency risk by close monitoring of currency
markets, and if the market dynamics are favorable, then by hedging its currency risk exposure
through forward purchase contracts.

96




b)

375

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of
the Company's interest bearing financial instruments were as follows:

Effective interest rate Carrying amount

2024 2023 2024 2023
% % e Rupees---------------
Variable rate instruments
Long term o o
scelizrlieri 3 I\ZI?-fLZ% 3 1\21?4‘—&2% 44,204,210 67,316,339
. t02.5% t0 2.5%
maturity of 24,557,949 24,557,949
Long term 3 MK + 2% 3 MK + 2% 4,004,707 5,992,876
Short term 1,3&6 3 & 6 MK
borrowings - MK +2% 805,000,000 944,907,362

At June 30, 2024, if the interest rates on the Company's borrowings had been 1% higher / (lower)
with all other variables held constant, the calculated post-tax profit for the year would have been
Rs.8.78 million (2023: Rs.10.43 million) higher / (lower) mainly as a result of higher / (lower)

interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Financial instruments by category

Financial assets at amortized cost
Trade debts
Loans to employees
Duty drawback
Sales tax refundable
Other receivables
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Long term borrowings - secured
Long term lease liability - secured
Deferred liability on acquisition of shares
Short term borrowings - secured
Trade and other payables
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Accrued mark-up
Unclaimed dividend

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
2,275,006,671 2,265,501,193
10,902,572 3,240,868
148,829,501 121,877,554
27,729,436 22,916,906
9,181,430 7,120,457
347,723,137 218,645,543
2,819,372,747 2,639,302,521
68,762,159 91,874,288
4,004,707 5,992,876
37,714,296 -
805,000,000 944,907,362
149,286,840 144,093,985
46,612,869 43,587,953
60,148,620 43,681,582
376,786 615,760

1,171,906,277

1,274,753,806
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38.

39.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Company is a going concern and
there is no intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a
transaction on adverse terms.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements and
fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of
fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset either directly that is, derived from prices.

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data ( that is,

unadjusted) inputs.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy is recognised at the end of the reporting period
during which the changes have occurred.

The carrying values of all other financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements
approximate their fair values.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors
monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total
shareholders' equity. The Board of Directors also monitor the level of dividend to ordinary
shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the
year and the Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

(1) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
(i) to provide an adequate return to sharcholders.
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40.

The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets

to reduce debt.

The management at all times seeks to earn returns higher than its weighted average cost of capital,
by increasing efficiencies in operations, so as to increase profitability.

Note
Long term borrowings - secured 17
Long term lease liabilities 18
Short term loan from related party - unsecured 19
Short term borrowings - secured 21
Accrued mark-up 23
Gross debt
Less: Cash and bank balances 13
Net debt
Total shareholder's equity
Equity and net debt

Gearing ratio (%)

OPERATING SEGMENTS

2024
Rupees

68,762,159
4,004,707
805,000,000
60,148,620
937,915,486

(347,723,137)
590,192,349
4,944222,174
5,534,414,523

11%

2023
Rupees

91,874,288
5,992,876
944,907,362
43,681,582
1,086,456,108

(218,645,543)
867,810,565
4,539,510,718
5,407,321,283

16%

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of a single reportable segment. The

principal classes of products are meat and offal.

All non-current assets of the Company as at June 30, 2024 are located in Pakistan.
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41.

41.1

41.2

42.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIV

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including certain
benefits to the chief executive officer, executive & non executive directors and executives of the
Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Directors Executives Total
Officer
Rupees
2024
Managerial remuneration 24,014,000 15,225,000 35,550,826 74,789,826
Other benefits 1,134,000 1,125,000 7,630,200 9,889,200
Board meeting fee - 1,109,000 - 1,109,000
25,148,000 17,459,000 43,181,026 85,788,026
Number of person(s) 1 7 15
2023
Managerial remuneration 12,294,100 13,026,574 39,116,437 64,437,111
Other benefits 1,048,426 1,036,275 5,052,043 7,136,743
Board meeting fee - 1,330,000 - 1,330,000
13,342,526 15,392,848 44,168,480 72,903,854
Number of person(s) 1 7 12

Executive means an employee, other than the Chief Executive Officer and the Directors, whose
basic salary exceeds twelve hundred thousand Rupees in a financial year.

The Chief Executive Officer, Executive Directors and certain Executives of the Company are
also provided with Company maintained cars.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise principal shareholders and their affiliates, directors, companies
with common directors and key management personnel. Remuneration of key management
personnel are in accordance with their terms of engagements. Transactions with other related
parties are entered into, at the rates negotiated with them.

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Company, directly or indirectly, including any
director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Company. The Company in the normal course
of business carries any transaction with various related parties.
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42.1

42.2

Details of significant transactions and balances at year end with related parties as at year end or
remained during the year, other than those which have been disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, are as follows:

Transactions during the year
Name of related party

Mr. Faisal Hussain

Mr. Ali Hussain

Ubiquity Trading Limited
Sindh Gas Company (Private)
Limited

Mohammad Saeed Mohammad
Hussain Limited

Shaikh Hamid Asghar

Farooq Saeed

Zain Farooq

Amna Hafeez Mastoor

Ali Hussain

Key management personnel

Non-executive directors

Balance at the end of year

Sindh Gas Company (Private)
Limited

Shaikh Hamid Asghar

Relationship

Chief Executive
Officer

Executive Director

Associate
(Common
Directorship)
Associate
(Common
Directorship)
Associate
(Common
Directorship)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
Executives other
than CEO and
Directors

Directors

Associate
(Common
Directorship)

Director

2023
Rupees

33,987,592

12,294,100

13,026,574

100,000,000

416,671

36,967,602

2024
Rupees
Nature
Loan - repaid =
Salary 24,014,000
Salary 15,225,000
Loan - repaid
Purchase of goods
2,493,840
Sales
9,892,250
Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL 14,857,140
Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL 14,857,140
Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL 14,857,140
Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL 72,857,144
Payment against
share purchase of
MSMHL 14,857,140
Salary and other
benefits 43,181,026
Fees 1,109,000

1,330,000

Trade and other
payables 170,069

Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL 9,428,572
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43.

44.

Name of related party Relationship
Farooq Saeed

Director
Zain Farooq

Director
Ali Hussain

Director
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Nature

Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL
Payable against
share purchase of
MSMHL

Total employees as at the year end

Average number of employees during the year

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
9,428,572 -
9,428,572 -
9,428,572 -
2024 2023
380 225
332 194

UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The principal purpose of the issue was to increase its current product output through the
utilization of IPO funds as well as set up a new Facility for the processing of Offal sourced
locally in Korangi Industrial Area and also a facility in the Export Processing Zone.

Estimated break-up of utilization of the IPO proceeds is mentioned below:

Utilization of Funds
A Funds . Actual IPO Funds Under/(Over
Description Required Allocation Expenditure Utilized Spe(nt )
-— Rupees — Yo — Rupees — -—--- Rupees -—--—--——
Facility of Local Offal in Korangi Industrial Area:
Land (1000 to 1200 Sq. yards) 100,000,000 60% 114,792,491 100,000,000 (14,792,491)
Construction of Office Building (12000 Sq.Feet) 31,000,000 19% 83,648,929 31,000,000 (52,648,929)
Equipment ( Chillers + freezers Storages) 21,200,000 13% 35,417,737 21,200,000 (14,217,737)
Machinery 15,000,000 9% 54,439,993 15,000,000 (39,439,993)
Total 167,200,000 100% 288,299,150 167,200,000 (121,099,149)
Facility for Export Processing Zone:
Land (1000 to 1200 Sq. yards) 60,000,000 57% - - -
Construction of Office Building (12000 Sq.Feet) 22,000,000 21% - - -
Equipment ( Chillers + freezers Storages) 19,948,556 19% = = =
Machinery 2,500,000 2% - - -
Acquisition of KEPZA company - 0% 170,000,000 104,448,556 (65,551,444)
104,448,556 100% 170,000,000 104,448,556 (65,551,444)
Working Capital 448,351,444 100% 448,351,444 448,351,444 -
Utilization of excess proceeds
Bank Islami loan repaid 40,000,000 50% 40,000,000 40,000,000
IPO expenses 23,769,303 30% 23,769,303 23,769,303
Fattening farm 16,230,697 20% 16,230,697 16,230,697
80,000,000 100% 80,000,000 80,000,000
Total 800,000,000 986,650,594 800,000,000 (186,650,593)
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The funds allocated for the working capital have been fully utilized, and been rolled over
multiple times in the working capital cycle. The ratio of fund utilization has been adjusted as
per the demand pattern of different products over the period since the IPO date. The amount
over-spent against the committed capital expenditures have been made through the Company's
own sources of funds.

The Company had tried to secure land in the Karachi Export Processing Zone (KEPZ) since the
time of the IPO. However, due to regulatory changes and non-availability of vacant land in the
KEPZ, the Company then looked at other options to fulfil its [PO fund utilization and
application commitments. The management of the Company then identified an already existing
oftal processing facility and company in the KEPZ, and the Board of Directors of the Company
approved an amount of up to PKR 170,000,000 (Pak Rupees one hundred and seventy million
only) to acquire 100% shareholding in that target company in the Karachi Export Processing
Zone (KEPZ), subject to negotiations with the existing shareholders of the said company.

45. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
The corresponding figures have been reclassified and rearranged where necessary to facilitate

comparison, however there has been no significant reclassification except for the impact as
shown in the note 4.16 pertaining to change in accounting policy.

2024 2023
45. PRODUCTION CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
Installed slaughtering capacity (heads) 240,000 149,760
Actual slaughtering capacity (heads) 93,645 67,650
Capacity utilization (%) 39% 45%

45.1 Actual production of the Company was sufficient to meet the customers' demand.
46. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

These financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2024 were authorized for issue on
September 28, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

47. GENERAL

Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.

N
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Chief Executive Officer /:_:(E,#ﬁif Financial Officer Director
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REGISTERED OFFICE

The Organic Meat Company Limited

Sector 24, Plot No. 257, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi - Pakistan
Tel: +92-21-35059969, +92-21-35079969

Email: info@tomcl.net

SHARE REGISTRAR

CorpTec Associates (Pvt.) Limited

Corporate Consultant

503-E, Johar Town, Lahore

Email: info@corptec.com.pk Website: www.corptec.com.pk

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

Mr. Imran Khan
Email: cs@tomcl.net

INVESTOR COMPLAINTS

For any complaints you may email at: investorcomplaint@tomcl.net

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

The Company follows the period of July 1 to June 30 as the Financial Year. For the Financial Year 2024-
2025, financial results will be announced as per the following tentative schedule:

1st Quarter ending September 30, 2024 last week of October 2025
Half Year ending December 31, 2024 2" week of February 2025
3rd Quarter ending March 31, 2025 Last week of April 2025

Year ending June 30, 2025 Last week of September 2025
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LISTING

Ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

STOCK CODE

The stock code for trading in ordinary shares of the Company at the Pakistan Stock Exchange is TOMCL.

STATUTORY COMPLIANCE

The Company is in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2017, which replaced
by the Companies Ordinance 1984, as well as circulars/mandates issued thereunder, the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, the Regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan and the Listing Rules of the Pakistan Stock Exchange.

BOOK CLOSURE

Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from October 21, 2024 to October 28, 2024

(both days inclusive).
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

The Companies ACT, 2017
The Companies (General Provisions and Forms) Regulations,

2018[Section 227(2)(f)]
Pattern of Shareholding
| PART | Form - 34
1.1 Name of The Company The Organic Meat Company Limited
[ PART-I |
2.1 Pattern of Holding of the Shares held by the Shareholders as at :June 30, 2024
2.2
No. of Shareholders Shareholding Total Shares held
From To
563 1 100 22,425
696 101 500 219,624
721 501 1,000 546,828
1,149 1,001 5,000 2,820,607
251 5,001 10,000 1,899,922
99 10,001 15,000 1,249,443
53 15,001 20,000 946,840
44 20,001 25,000 1,036,111
33 25,001 30,000 937,539
15 30,001 35,000 491,618
15 35,001 40,000 575,121
13 40,001 45,000 551,329
10 45,001 50,000 489,728
7 50,001 55,000 372,759
2 55,001 60,000 116,000
5 60,001 65,000 312,260
3 65,001 70,000 207,400
2 70,001 75,000 150,000
2 80,001 85,000 162,400
7 85,001 90,000 617,911
5 90,001 95,000 466,648
6 95,001 100,000 598,691
2 100,001 105,000 203,008
4 105,001 110,000 428,989
3 110,001 115,000 336,400
3 115,001 120,000 355,868
3 120,001 125,000 373,164
1 125,001 130,000 127,696
1 130,001 135,000 130,500
1 140,001 145,000 142,902
3 145,001 150,000 446,896
1 155,001 160,000 158,000
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1 165,001 170,000 169,907
1 175,001 180,000 178,975
1 185,001 190,000 185,500
1 195,001 200,000 200,000
2 205,001 210,000 414,000
2 210,001 215,000 428,475
1 215,001 220,000 220,000
3 225,001 230,000 683,541
1 230,001 235,000 233,317
2 245,001 250,000 500,000
1 260,001 265,000 265,000
1 265,001 270,000 268,756
1 295,001 300,000 295,300
1 305,001 310,000 309,769
1 325,001 330,000 330,000
1 390,001 395,000 394,770
2 395,001 400,000 800,000
2 410,001 415,000 825,925
1 430,001 435,000 432,065
1 495,001 500,000 495,650
1 505,001 510,000 510,000
1 540,001 545,000 545,000
2 565,001 570,000 1,133,844
1 685,001 690,000 686,252
1 710,001 715,000 715,000
1 770,001 775,000 775,000
1 780,001 785,000 780,500
1 850,001 855,000 851,600
2 995,001 1,000,000 2,000,000
1 1,375,001 1,380,000 1,376,000
1 1,685,001 1,690,000 1,686,000
1 1,815,001 1,820,000 1,818,453
1 1,930,001 1,935,000 1,933,235
1 2,195,001 2,200,000 2,200,000
1 2,670,001 2,675,000 2,672,826
1 2,770,001 2,775,000 2,774,500
1 4,240,001 4,245,000 4,245,000
1 7,640,001 7,645,000 7,641,000
1 8,040,001 8,045,000 8,040,797
1 13,970,001 13,975,000 13,971,593
1 67,005,001 67,010,000 67,009,036
3,773 148,491,213
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The Organic Meat Company Limited

As On: June 30, 2024

2.3 Categories of Shareholder Folios Physical CDC Share held Percentage
2.3.1 - Directors, CEO, Their Spouse and Minor Childern 7 - 81,589,877 81,589,877 54.95
2.3.4 - Banks, DFIs, NBFCs 2 - 516,269 516,269 0.35
2.3.5 - Insurance Companies 1 - 2,672,826 2,672,826 1.80
2.3.6 - Modarabas and Mutual Funds 9 - 1,628,111 1,628,111 1.10
2.3.8 - A. General Public (Local) 3,679 2,035 46,906,415 46,908,450 31.59
2.3.9 - A. Other Companies (Local) 75 - 15,175,680 15,175,680 10.22
3,773 2,035 148,489,178| 148,491,213 100.00
Shareholders More Than 10.00%
MR. FAISAL HUSSAIN 1| 67,009,036] 45.13
The Organic Meat Company Limited
List of Directors, CEO, Their Spouse and Minor Childern (Folio Wise)
As On : June 30, 2024
Sr. # Folio Title CNIC Category Holding % Age
1 03277-096986 | NIHAL CASSIM 42301-8289704-9 Director 1 0.00
2 07419-011431 | RIZWAN ABBAS 42301-0867315-5 Director 214,475 0.14
3 07419-017313 | ALI HUSSAIN 42000-8719486-3 Director 13,971,593 9.41
4 07419-017321 | FAISAL HUSSAIN 42301-7030455-9 Director 67,009,036 45.13
5 07419-019541 | SEHRISH HAFEEZ MASTOOR 42301-1452534-0 Director 1 0.00
6 07419-020085 | SYED OWAIS HASSAN ZAIDI 42000-0533357-3 Director 1 0.00
7 18432-100866 | ANEEK SALEH MOHAMMAD 42101-5102439-1 Director 394,770 0.27
Grand Total >> 81,589,877 54.95
The Organic Meat Company Limited
List of Banks, DFIs, NBFCs (Folio Wise)
As On : June 30, 2024
Sr. # Folio Title NTN Holding % Age
1 01875-000039 | SAMBA BANK LIMITED 18043313 206,500 0.14
2 02246-000042 | HABIB BANK LIMITED-TREASURY DIVISION 06981879 309,769 0.21
Grand Total >> 516,269 0.35
The Organic Meat Company Limited
List of Insurance Companies (Folio Wise)
As On : June 30, 2024
Sr. # Folio Title NTN Holding % Age
1 18093-000027 | JUBILEE LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 06605648 2,672,826 1.80
Grand Total >> 2,672,826 1.80
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The Organic Meat Company Limited
List of Modarabas and Mutual Funds (Folio Wise)

As On : June 30, 2024
Sr. # Folio Title NTN Holding % Age

1 05819-000023 CDC - TRUSTEE ALHAMRA ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 21414068 400,000 0.27
2 05991-000023 CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 22219404 2,913 0.00
3 07070-000022 CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 17819890 775,000 0.52
4 10710-000028 CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 28968727 432,065 0.29
5 12617-000028 CDC-TRUSTEE FAYSAL ISLAMIC SAVINGS GROWTH FUND 36214477 14,952 0.01
6 14761-000029 CDC - TRUSTEE AWT ISLAMIC STOCK FUND 42587301 313 0.00
7 16501-000027 CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND 72277266 112 0.00
8 17160-000029 CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 74969133 23 0.00
9 17210-000022 CDC TRUSTEE - MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND 75565383 2,733 0.00

Grand Total >> 1,628,111 1.10
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Notice is hereby given that the 14th Annual General Meeting of The Organic Meat Company Limited
(the “Company”) will be held on Monday, October 28, 2024 at 11:30 am at the corporate office of the
Company situated at Plot No. 257, Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi to transact the following
businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2024 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

2. To re-appoint BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants as the external auditors of the Company
for the year 2024-25 and to fix their remuneration

Special Business:

3. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the resolutions
appearing below as special resolutions for increasing the authorized share capital of the Company
from 165,000,000 (One Hundred & Sixty-five Million) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each (Rupees Ten)
to 200,000,000 (Two Hundred Million) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each (Rupees Ten) representing
an increase in authorized share capital of Rs.350,000,000 (Rupees Three Hundred and Fifty Million
Only) which is an increase of 21.21% over the previous authorized share capital as recommended
by the Board of Directors.

In this connection, the following special resolutions (with or without modifications) are proposed
to be passed:

Specially Resolved that the annual body of shareholders hereby ratify an increase in
authorized share capital of the Company by Rs. 350,000,000 (Rupees Three Hundred and Fifty
Million Only) divided into additional 35,000,000 (Thirty-five Million) ordinary shares of Rs.
10 each (Rupees Ten), thus increasing the total authorized capital of the Company to
Rs,2,000,000,000 (Rupees Two Billion Only) divided into 200,000,000 (Two Hundred Million)
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each (Rupees Ten).

4. Clause V of the Memorandum of Association:

To pass a special resolution in consequence of the aforesaid increase in the authorized share capital
of the Company, the existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and
hereby replaced accordingly, to read as follows:




6.
Company:

Specially Resolved that “The authorized capital of the company is Rs. 2,000,000,000/- (Rupees Two
Billion Only) divided into 200,000,000 (Two Hundred Million) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten)
each; with powers to increase, reduce, consolidate or otherwise reorganize the share capital and to
divide the shares of the Company into different classes in accordance of the provisions of Companies
Act, 2017

Clause 3 of the Articles of Association:

To pass a special resolution in consequence of the aforesaid increase in the authorized share capital
of the Company, the existing Clause 3 of the Articles of Association of the Company be and hereby
replaced accordingly, to read as follows:

Specially Resolved that “The authorized capital of the company is Rs. 2,000,000,000/- (Rupees Two
Billion Only) divided into 200,000,000 (Two Hundred Million) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten)
each; with powers to increase or reduce the share capital. The Company may from time to time consolidate,
sub-divide or otherwise re-organize the shares capital of the Company’.

Authorization to Amendment/alteration in Memorandum and Article of Association of the

Resolved that “the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and/or Company Secretary of the
Company be and are hereby jointly and severally empowered and authorized to take all steps and
actions necessary, incidental and ancillary as may be required in this regard and to do all acts, matters,
and things as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of increase in authorized share capital and
amendment/ alteration in Memorandum and Article of Association of the Company.”

A statement as required by Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 in respect of the special business

to be considered at the meeting is included in this notice.

7. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

7N o .
N\

Karachi Imran Khan
Dated: October 5, 2024 Company

Secretary
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NOTES:

1. The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday, October 21, 2024 to
Monday, October 28, 2024 (both days inclusive) and no transfers will be registered during that time.
Shares received in order at the office of our Share Registrar, M/s. Corptec Associates (Private) Limited,
Share Registrar and Corporate Consultants, 503-E, Johar Town, Lahore. at the close of business on Friday,
October 18, 2024 will be treated in time for the above entitlement for both the Annual General Meeting
and the interim bonus shares to be issued.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint any
other member as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote in his/her instead. The proxies to be effective
must be in writing and must be received by the Company’s corporate office 48 hours before the meeting.

3. Shareholders of the Company whose shares are registered in their account/sub-account with
Central Depository System (CDS) are requested to bring original Computerized National Identity Card
along with their account number in CDS and participant’s ID number for verification

4, In compliance with Section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Regulation 19 Companies
(General Provisions and Forms) Regulations, 2018 members are requested to immediately provide their
mandatory information such as CNIC number, updated mailing address, email, contact mobile/telephone
number and International Banking Account Number (IBAN) together with a copy of their CNIC to update
our records and to avoid any non-compliance of the law. Otherwise, all dividends will be withheld in
terms of Regulation 6 of the Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017;

5. Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 provides that in case of a listed company, any cash
dividend declared by the company must be paid electronically directly into the bank accounts of entitled
shareholders. Therefore, all shareholders are requested to fill in the Dividend Mandate Form available
on Company’s website and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of the
Company M/s. Corptec Associates (Private) Limited in case of physical shares. In case shares are held
in CDC then Dividend Mandate Form must be submitted directly to shareholder’s broker/ participant/CDC
account services. In case of non-submission of IBAN, the Company will withhold the payment of
dividends under Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

6. All Shareholders are advised to check their status on Active Taxpayers List (ATL) available on FBR
website and if required take necessary actions for inclusion of their name in ATL. In case a person’s name
does not appear in the ATL, the applicable tax rate will be as per law.

7. In case of joint account, please intimate proportion of shareholding of each account holder
along with their individual’s status on the ATL.

8. Members who desire to stop deduction of Zakat from their dividends may submit a declaration
on non-judicial stamp paper duly signed as required under the law (if not submitted earlier).

9. Withholding Tax exemption from the dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax

exemption certificate is made available to our Share Registrar by first day of Book Closure.
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10.  The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Numbers
(NTN) updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send
a copy of their NTN certificate to the company or our Share Registrar M/s. Corptec Associates
(Private) Limited. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificate, as the case may be, must
quote company name and their respective folio numbers.

11. In compliance of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, once the Company has completed
stipulated formalities, any unclaimed dividend and /or shares that have remained outstanding for a
period of three years from the date of becoming due and payable or more shall be credited to the
Federal Government (in case of dividend) or delivered to the SECP (in case of physical shares). Shareholders
who could not collect their dividend/physical shares are advised to contact the Share Registrar of the
Company to collect/inquire about their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any.

12. Annual Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2024 have been placed
on Company’s website at and .

13.  The AGM can be attended by shareholders using smart phones/tablets/computers. To attend
the meeting through video link, members and their proxies are requested to register themselves by
providing the following information along with valid copy of Computerized National Identity Card (both
sides)/passport, attested copy of board resolution / power of attorney (in case of corporate shareholders)
through email at by October 25, 2024.

Name of CDC Account | Cell .
member CNIC No. No/Folio No. | Number. Email address

The members who are registered after the necessary verification shall be provided with a video
link by the Company at the same email address that they emailed the Company with. The Login
facility will remain open from the start of the meeting till its proceedings are concluded.

14. Members can exercise their right to vote by means of postal ballot i.e., by post or through
electronic mode subject to the requirements of Section 143 -145 of Companies Act, 2017, and applicable
clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

15.  Procedure for E-Voting: Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with

those members of the Company who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail addresses
available in the register of members of the company by the close of business on October 18, 2024.
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The web address, login details, and password, will be communicated to members via email. The security
codes will be communicated to members through SMS from the web portal of Registrar of the Company
M/s. Corptec Associates (Private) Limited (being the e-voting service provider). Identity of the Members
intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be authenticated through electronic signature or
authentication for login.

Members shall cast vote online at any time from October 25, 2024, 9:00 am to October 27, 2024 at 5:00

pm. Once the vote on the resolution is cast by a Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Pertaining to Item No. 3: Increase in authorized share capital

To consider and approve the increase in authorized share capital of the Company by 21.21% of its
existing authorized share capital. This increase represents 35,000,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each,
thus increasing the total authorized capital of the Company to Rs.2,000,000,000 divided into 200,000,000
ordinary shares of Rs.10 each.

In this connection, the following special resolutions (with or without modifications)
are proposed to be passed:

Specially Resolved that the annual body of shareholders hereby ratify an increase
in authorized share capital of the Company by Rs. 350,000,000 (Rupees Three Hundred
and Fifty Million Only) divided into additional 35,000,000 (Thirty-five Million) ordinary
shares of Rs. 10 each (Rupees Ten), thus increasing the total authorized capital of the
Company to Rs,2,000,000,000 (Rupees Two Billion Only) divided into 200,000,000 (Two
Hundred Million) ordinary shares of Rs.10 each (Rupees Ten).

Pertaining to Item No. 4: Clause V of the Memorandum of Association:

In consequence of the aforesaid increase in the authorized share capital of the Company, the
existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and hereby replaced
accordingly, to read as follows:

“The authorized capital of the company is Rs. 2,000,000,000/- (Rupees Two Billion Only) divided
into 200,000,000 (Two Hundred Million) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each; with powers
to increase, reduce, consolidate or otherwise reorganize the share capital and to divide the shares
of the Company into different classes in accordance of the provisions of Companies Act, 2017.”

Pertaining to Item No.5: Clause 3 of the Articles of Association:

In consequence of the aforesaid increase in the authorized share capital of the Company, the
existing Clause 3 of the Articles of Association of the Company be and hereby replaced accordingly,
to read as follows:

“The authorized capital of the company is Rs. 2,000,000,000/- (Rupees Two Billion Only) divided
into 200,000,000 (Two Hundred Million) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each; with powers
to increase or reduce the share capital. The Company may from time to time consolidate, sub-
divide or otherwise re-organize the shares capital of the Company”.




Pertaining to Item No. 6: Authorization to Amendment/alteration in Memorandum and Article
of Association of the Company:

“the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and/or Company Secretary of the Company
be and are hereby jointly and severally empowered and authorized to take all steps and actions
necessary, incidental and ancillary as may be required in this regard and to do all acts, matters,
and things as may be necessary or expedient for the purpose of increase in authorized share
capital and amendment/ alteration in Memorandum and Article of Association of the Company.”
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|/ We
of

being a member(s) of The Organic Meat Company Limited holder of

ordinary Shares as per Share Registrar Folio/CDC Account No.
hereby appoint Mr./Miss/Mrs. Folio/CDC Account No
of____ whoisalsoamember of the Company as my / our proxy to attend, speak & vote for me /
us and on my / our behalf at the at the 14th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be held on
Monday, October 28, 2024 at 11.30 pm and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this, day of 2024
Rs.5/=
Revenue
Stamp
(Signature should agree with
the specimen signature registered
with Company)
Signature
Witnesses:
1: Signature
Name:
Address:
CNIC or
Passport No.
2: Signature
Name:
Address:
CNIC or

Passport No.

Important:

1. This form of Proxy, duly completed and signed, must be submitted at the Company’s Corporate Office
not later than 48 hours.

2. For CDC Account Holder / Corporate Entities:
In addition of the above following requirements have to be met;

i) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC Numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

ii) Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

iii) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting.

iv) In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.




iy &
Yy > 7 g
A r“il','-:z‘./’—. L

4¥ 128508 friss e oSl

L s el ST B sy 2y S EA1:30 24412024

.
- 2 N = 5
Lis™y » ey S 6T
27 37 e ."..3’/.._-._,/.~4L
o - - 5

L A -~ 7 je [ apie IS i
DA~ A CA 200 Iy 9%y

. .

+,2024 Gt Jssl

(-
.
o
.

123




The Organic Meat Company Limited
Registered Address:
Survey Number 310-Deh Shah Mureed, Gadap, Karachi, Pakistan.
Contact # +92-346-8224601, +92-346-8224630

Korangi Plant & Correspondence Address:
Plot No. 257,Sector 24, Korangi Industrial Area, Karachi - Pakistan
Tel: +92-21-35059969, +92-21-35079969

Email: Website
info@tomcl.net | www.tomcl.net
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